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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Zijiang
Mr. Chen Xiaohua (General manager)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Guo Yucheng (resigned on 1 January 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Leung Kam Wan
Mr. Liu Chenguang

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Leung Kam Wan (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Liu Chenguang

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Liu Chenguang (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Baoyu

Mr. Leung Kam Wan

Mr. Liu Yang

Nomination Committee

Mr. Liu Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Kam Wan
Mr. Liu Chenguang

Safety and Environmental Protection Committee

Mr. Liu Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Li Yuguo

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lau Wai Chun

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest Equity Auditor
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd., Weifang Branch
Agricultural Bank of China,

Weifang High Tech Industry Development Zone Branch
China Construction Bank Corporation, Weifang Branch

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716 on the 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2204A on the 22nd Floor
Bank of America Tower

12 Harcourt Road Central

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC")

Weifang High Tech Industry Development Zone

Weifang City

Shandong Province

The PRC

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.tdchem.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”): 609

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Room 2204A on the 22nd Floor
Bank of America Tower

12 Harcourt Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: 852-2866 6848

Fax: 852-2866 8922
ir@tdchem.com

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 3



MBRERLFUBEHE

Financial Highlights and Five Years Financial Summary

s —ZT—t+F ZT-N\F ZT-hnF ZIZTTF ZBEZ-f
Notes 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
E4 Results
(UARETFTIT) (expressed in RMB'000)

BEE Revenue 1,407,329 1,179,300 1,381,138 1,359,393 2,584,731

e -~ Gross profit 282,645 65,154 185,387 181,134 777,870

RARIER AEIG Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners

sl (E18) of the Company 101,562 (61,058) 21,507 94,821 379,647

FHEAREF](BE)  Basic earnings/loss) per share

(AR¥) (in RMB) 1 0.120 (0.072) 0.025 0.111 0.446
AREPFIE BB HEK  Eamnings before interest, taxation,

BHA BT ([R5t depreciation and amortisation

AE - HIE - HER ("EBITDA")

BHRIAF]) 250,895 34,125 146,233 238,540 668,070

B AR Financial Positions

(UARETFTIT) (expressed in RMB'000)

BEE Total assets 2 1,925,006 1,691,333 1,909,369 1,918,903 2,316,731

# ,\1% Total liabilities 3 556,481 398,933 605,533 536,011 561,921

BRFEEANEE) Net assets per share (in RMB) 4 1.606 1.517 1.530 1.623 2.060

Brig L 2 Financial Ratios

BN = Current ratio 5 15 16 1.1 14 2.0

RE) & Quick ratio 6 12 1.2 0.9 12 1.6

AR = Gearing ratio 7 EH NA 32% 5.1% 6.6%  TE N/A

15 & A [o] R 3k Average capital employed 8 24.0% 10.2% 6.8% 14.0% 27.3%

FfieE Notes:

1 FREX = ZFAAREAARGEGR(BE) 1 Basic earnings/ = Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of the Company +
&aFl, — FARAE B BTG INE (loss) per share Weighted average of issued shares of the Company
(E518) FHH - FREXRBF (B for the year. The calculation of basic earnings/

18) THIR IR AR A I 35 ik fn (loss) per share is based on the weighted average
HFAEE MREBEE_T—+ number of 850,499,995, 851,954,000, 851,954,000,
F-ZE-N\F -ZE-hnF- 851,954,000 and 851,954,000 shares of the
TECEER T —F A+ Company for the five years ended 31 December
A=+—BHLERAEFEZARA 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively.
AIMEFEHERHEE DA

850,499,9950% * 851,954,000% -

851,954,0000% * 851,954,000/% M

851,954,0004% °

2 mEE = JERBEE+ RBEE 2 Total assets = Non-current assets + Current assets

3 REE = FERBDEE+ RBARE 3 Total liabilities = Non-current liabilities + Current liabilities

4 BRFEE = AER-NEFREIRAREET 4 Net assets = Total equity + Number of issued shares of the Company

& € E per share at the respective years end

5 mELE = RBEE-RDEE 5 Current ratio Current assets + Current liabilities

6 REPLLE = (RBEE-FER) -R2AE 6 Quick ratio (Current assets — Inventories) + Current liabilities

7 BELE = FEEJHRBITERRESERE 7 Gearing ratio Net debts (Total borrowings net of bank and cash

EEMIRITFERE 2 fERETE) balances and pledged bank deposits) + Total equity
R

8 BARLOFHER = RAFHE - BB TEKREHA 8 Return on capital = EBITDA / (Total assets — Total current liabilities)
((=&ZNE=E: B (BEE-BREAME) employed
x]) (“ROCE")

FHER = (BEARRE + BIREARE Average capital = (Opening ROCE + Closing ROCE) / 2
[B] 5 H=x),2 employed

4 ARBETERERAR —F--F5F%K
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Financial Highlights and Five Years Financial Summary

B ARKFT)
REVENUE (RMB’000)

628,121 1,956,610

312,580 1,046,813

299,495 1,081,643

307,552 871,748

348,355 1,058,974

(61,058)

- N H
Overseas The PRC

FNUNCTE 2= DN

SRR, (B8) ArR#FT)
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (RMB’000)
379,647

101,562

Om

Q

ERN AR#EFT)
GROSS PROFIT (RMB’000)

Qf&

777,870

181,134

185,387

65,154

282,645

I KRS - BE -
%8 TERBYHNRR AREFT)
EBITDA (RMB’000)

668,070

238,540

146,233

34,125

250,895
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) of Tiande
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, collectively
the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Mr. Liu Yang

Chairman
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The overall business environment showed progressive improvement in 2021
as a result of the gradual but effective control of the novel coronavirus
disease (COVID-19) pandemic (the “COVID-19” or “Pandemic”) and the
unconventional fiscal and monetary policies adopted by various countries
to boost economic recovery. These factors contributed to the improvement
in the market demands for the products of the Group and significantly
drove up the market selling prices. Besides, the Group had launched
new products in the markets in previous years to expand coverage of the
downstream markets and created new revenue sources. Consequently, the
revenue of the Group reached historic high in 2021.

On the other hand, the rising global inflation caused unprecedented
increases in the costs of basic raw materials, hence exerting inevitably
cost pressures on the Group. The partial adverse impact of the sharp
increase in the cost of raw materials was effectively mitigated mainly due
to: (i) the Group persistently and unremittingly dedicated to improving its
productivity and efficiency of production scale; and (i) the relocation of the
production facilities of Weifang Parasia Chem Co., Ltd. (“Weifang Parasia”)
and its consolidation to the production plant of Weifang Binhai Petro-
Chem Co., Ltd. (“Weifang Binhai”) achieved effective resource allocation
and magnified the positive effects of circular economy production system
and production scale. Hence, the Group achieved a remarkable gross
profit. Through further optimisation on organisation structure and resource
distribution to improve operational efficiency, the Group contained the
operating expenses at a reasonable level successfully. Finally, the Group
achieved satisfactory results for this fiscal year.

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 7



EREHE

Chairman’s Statement

FEFEAE)

BT MBEENREN  ERNEBEFERARNEEDN
R EHERS 22 AT L5k - AN SR B AR A A AR
EEMMEA E—FPTELNERGEE WME
EAKEBEGFEY - BERE  NEERE
HA @B ROEBRE RERFEIL AL
TERERREETEZRRESRFBEKF I
MEERNEEEBAFERR - I NEEE
RAGHHRFEY FERBRRABNNHFE
BB EFGHE LARBEHENAKER
REFMIBR -

RE

RERR - & B E 2 1 A [ A9 BOR 38 e A
ENE THEIEREWRTE - 1Hh - SREH
B B b A RRE R AT RE M B N B E R
REAFE FHZRSRERREEHULAKE
ETHEMSEHREREZTRARE - AEEH
EYEBBMREY  WEELERRIVE S R &
EHEEMAREER - AREIFRBEE NS
BiohE  BRAERBEXBERETERIRRN
BHITH HERURESH  BPR/AKER
RONEBERFARER EF@UAKENER
B RNEMED  LHBEE2NA/AQFR
RUOBRDBIEEAEE -

BRE

EEeRERERE S —4F+-_A=+—81F
B FEEAAR S TR ([AH ) KRR
B% BB 020 (ZE =4 : B¥0.037T) °
BRREEAAREERFEAFRAE((ZE==
[ERAFERE]) ERRIER  BIRKRERBIE
BN~ — — 4\ AN B s34 B RE ABRSDRN -

8 RECTERBRAF —T-—F5H

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Apart from achieving improvement in financial results, in light of the
unprecedented escalation in the costs of raw materials during the year
under review, the Group increased the investment in its research and
development to improve the product portfolio and further optimise the
layout of upstream products, with an aim to reinforce the competitive
advantages of the Group as a whole. Concurrently, the Group upheld its
sustainable business strategy by continuously increasing the investment in
advancing the production process in relation to safety and environmental
protection and elevating the governance standards for environmental
protection, thus facilitating the sustainable business development of
the Group. In addition, the Group continues to vigorously explore new
business opportunities with good potential by leveraging on its competitive
advantages. The Board believes that all the aforementioned initiatives
would benefit the business growth of the Group in the future.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, various countries are going to introduce diverse policies or
measures to tackle the prevailing global inflation momentum. In addition,
the rapid spreading of variants of the COVID-19 may exert influence on
the progress of economic recovery in the PRC. It is anticipated that such
volatilities in the macro environment will create more uncertainties in the
supply and demand conditions for both the upstream and downstream
markets of the Group. The Group will closely monitor the change in
market conditions and counteract by implementing appropriate strategies
and measures expeditiously. Through the persistent pursuit of operational
improvements of the Group in recent years, the focal points of investments
have been clearly laid out both in the solidification of business foundation
and the exploration of new business opportunities ahead, which will
facilitate to build a path for business growth of the Group in the future.
The Board remains highly confident in the overall business prospects of
the Group and will strive to create greater value to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

DIVIDEND

The Board proposed a final dividend of HK$0.20 (2020: HK$0.03) per
issued shares of the Company (the “Shares”) for the financial year ended
31 December 2021. Subject to the approval by the Shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “2022
AGM"), the proposed final dividend is tentatively to be distributed to the
Shareholders on or about 4 August 2022.
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Chairman’s Statement

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my sincerest gratitude to all the staff for their
contributions to the achievements of the Group in 2021, as well as to
the customers, suppliers, shareholders and all the partners of the Group
for their staunch support and stalwart cooperation. My appreciation also
extends to the Directors and members of management for undertaking
and devoting to their duties for the Group. Their contributions, endeavours
and trust are the cornerstones for the success and sustainable development
of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Yang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 9
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LIU Yang, aged 38, is the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”).
Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall strategic development, business
planning and policy setting of the Group. He graduated from China
University of Petroleum in the PRC with a degree of Bachelor of Electronic
and Information Engineering and Simon Fraser University, Canada with
a degree of Bachelor of Finance in 2006 and 2010 respectively. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked as a channel manager of S&F 3iF 5 & &
EIRE RN A] (Xingzheng Securities Asset Management Co., Ltd.) for the
period from November 2011 to March 2014. He joined the Group in April
2014.

WANG Zijiang, aged 57, is an executive Director and one of the
co-founders of the Group. He graduated from Nanjing Chemical College
(now known as Nanjing University of Technology) in the PRC in 1988,
majoring in chemical engineering. He worked for three years since 1991
in Weifang New Technology Research Centre. After that, Mr. Wang
co-founded Weifang Tianhong Equity Investment Company Limited
("Weifang Tianhong”) in 1996. Mr. Wang has over 25 years of experience
in the chemical industry.

CHEN Xiaohua, aged 44, is an executive Director and a general manager
of the Company. He is also a director of Weifang Common Chem Co.,
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since November 2018,
and was a director of Weifang Dekel Innovative Materials Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from January 2018 to January
2020. Mr. Chen graduated from Changwei Teachers College (& 4R &3
ERIZR) (now known as Weifang University) in the PRC in July 1999,
majoring in chemistry education. He joined the Group in March 2000. He
has over 20 years of experience in the chemical industry.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO Baoyu, aged 60, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 4 October 2006. He is the professor of
environmental engineering and the tutor of the postgraduate students
studying for doctorate degrees of Shandong University in the PRC since
September 1999 and November 2001 respectively. He was also the dean
of the school of environmental science and engineering of Shandong
University in the PRC from January 2001 to November 2012. Mr. Gao
was awarded by Shandong Provincial People’s Government as one of
the Middle-aged and Young Expert with Outstanding Contributions in
Shandong Province in the PRC in 2007. He graduated from Tsinghua
University in the PRC in 1999 with a doctorate degree in engineering
majoring in environment engineering.

LEUNG Kam Wan, aged 56, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 1 March 2007. Mr. Leung graduated from
Hong Kong Baptist University and Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance and a
master degree in corporate governance in 1992 and 2007 respectively.
Mr. Leung is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and
an associate of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). Mr. Leung
has been a practicing certified public accountant for over 10 years. He
has extensive experience in financing, accounting and auditing. Mr. Leung
currently is the managing director of Leung Kam Wan CPA Limited.

LIU Chenguang, aged 59, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 4 October 2006. Mr. Liu obtained from East
China Petroleum Institute in the PRC (now known as China University of
Petroleum) a bachelor’s degree in science majoring in petroleum refining
in 1982 and a master’s degree in applied chemistry in 1985. He also
obtained his doctorate degree in applied chemistry from China University
of Petroleum (Beijing) in the PRC in 1991. Mr. Liu has been appointed as
an associate professor of China University of Petroleum in the PRC (“China
University of Petroleum™) in 1992, was then promoted as a professor in
1994 and subsequently took on the post as the tutor of postgraduate
students studying for doctorate degrees in 1998 and has ever since
become the professor and tutor at China University of Petroleum. Mr. Liu
was the dean of the college of chemical engineering of China University of
Petroleum from May 2004 to April 2013. Currently, he is a professor of the
college of chemical engineering of China University of Petroleum. Mr. Liu
is @ member of China Petroleum Society, China Chemistry Society, China
Chemical Society, American Chemistry Society and director of Shandong
Chemistry and Chemical Society.

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 11



EEENWEDN

Management Discussion and Analysis

KX OE

REBEFE BENLUTARSREEE &5
BEEE - N EEEBERIFEROMBINEER
R BNEPEREHAZSER -ARBEANER
BAE =B A TR S i A AR B - BA

REFSERSERE - DA RHERBEHRIRE

EENTE CAKETHMSNEEEERE
HE-EMSTHAREERNT SRR XER

AEBRAERNHEMTISITHRRE  AEE
BAREDMETSEE - B NEERAESF

iR Z R E m - RIIBR Tl Mg MR %
BRE - M alER AR - I EFATS

SERB L AEEROEFE 2 EXBAM
BEFRIBIENM -

AN IR EE B R R AR R RHER 2T
MEFERNMBAEEBERLERRESER
SREWER  SEAKERME REER AR
%J:EE EREFHEDHINEERBRELE

BEMBRESNEEREN  EAKENEER
@JEP&EEP BRECEE Az o WWEHRE T
PDREAEERBLE NMEEREY D - 58
EIEANESIG R R PNE: S A N =l b TS &= ORI
E-Hit AEBENRENETGREER - It
S AEBERBEERERE  EHZERIHE
BEKF  AREREEM S - &AL PA LRI
BRR  AEEREEFENANREFREER

HB—TE - ER LTS & R R E K g
BRARFE EFA - RSB R FERIE MR
NEEMAENE—FPREE LHERNIBE 1
MEERDIME L HEF KON THBPEE - &
AREGRERBEVEREOER - I KEE
MEERNENELERREETIEHTEMAR
B THESAEETIURBEREELEEER
&}Immmiﬁ_x moABFERREAEEEE
BERBREPTASBRNEELE - BREIELE
NEZEMRREETIBRTHBOIMETER X
SR EAEETS  NAEEBTRAFEREN
=i

12 RECTERERAT —Z-—FFH

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, progressive recovery of global economy
was driven by the combined effects of the Pandemic gradually brought
under control following the introduction of the COVID-19 vaccines and the
unconventional fiscal and monetary policies adopted by various countries.
The economy of the PRC continued to recover steadily as a result of the
implementation of the effective COVID-19 prevention policies nationwide.
The foregoing factors exerted favourable influences on the overall business
environment and led to continued improvements in the business conditions
of the downstream markets of the Group and further invigorated the
market demands for the products of the Group. Benefited from the
effective sales and marketing strategies adopted by the Group, the
Group was able to expeditiously cope with market changes. Furthermore,
the Group had launched several new products in previous years which
successfully expanded the downstream markets and enhanced business
scale so as to generate new revenue stream, as well as notable escalation
in the market selling prices. Therefore, the revenue of the Group for the
year under review increased significantly as compared with that of last
year.

The costs of raw materials and manufacturing of the Group rose
substantially as a result of the sharp rally in the cost of basic raw materials
synchronously pushed by global economic recovery, along with a higher
inflation induced by unconventional fiscal and monetary policies and a
low interest rate environment. In light of the relocation of production
facilities of Weifang Parasia and its consolidation with the production
plant of Weifang Binhai last year, the Group further consolidated its
production activities and allocated its resources with greater efficiency.
These moves have further enhanced the overall productivity and economies
of production scale of the Group successfully and offset the adverse impact
of significantly increased costs of raw materials and manufacture partially.
Consequently, the Group recorded substantial increases in its gross profit
and gross profit margin. In addition, the Group persists with streamlining
its business processes and containing its operating expenses at a reasonable
level with an aim to improving operational efficiency. Eventually, these
strategies bore fruit, the net profit of the Group for the year under review
achieved a remarkable increase as compared with that of last year.

On the one hand, in view of the unabated volatile supply of raw materials
in the upstream markets and their costs continuously escalated, the
Group increased research and development expenditure for improving
the product portfolio and further optimising the layout of upstream
products during the year; thereby minimising the uncertainties arose from
external upstream supplies and building a more stable foundation for
future business development. Besides, the Group continuously increased
the investment in the improvement of production process in respect of
safety and environmental protection and incessantly optimisation of its
production activities, which in turn would further advance its circular
economy production system and enhance its production efficiency as a
whole. Sustainable development is an indispensable component in the
course of business development of the Group. The main axis for realising
sustainable development of the Group is underpinned by the high standard
of production process in relation to safety and environmental protection,
as well as continuous commitment of research and development in new
products and/or advancement of production process.



EHORE(E)
RE

REMBBRIRAR BB ZEDFRBINE
WHEREEABRRTNESAER  EREMERK
REFE - mBONR RTINS ZBERBARM
B o FLANERMEFENAEAMRFE S RRERE -
E%Li\ﬂ;%m&f LiEdE - FlB@RERBKERE
BA=EE  ANZEREEERRROTIHEK
FEJ1?LA&J$TZMEX$&EDD.:.{, HES AEH
/,\Tmﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ%fﬂm 51T $ 2R IS DA JE <t
MigEE WHEBHHNESEANBEENE K
%’%@H%ﬁﬁ%;zhﬂ%ﬁ%]ﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬂ%ﬁm%
B o It AREBRIFEGINE TEEEL
ERRE LERELZE2TIRRAE  #MREA
HAEMAFENEBEN BECRHAANEY
e EFRNMEREERREBZETMELD
AEEBEREFEMRERENEETT  WHD
ABRRETSENRAETIER

Bt %5 0 R
—E -t

REBEFE  IAREEHEE] — SR HAN
INEIRREENTE $%%¥Tif5’ﬁ%%ﬁ%
maF - Bl AEBEROTISHIFEGE - I
O AEBNEEE AEBEETEMNEER

ﬁﬁﬂ%iﬂifﬁi%ﬁ% Bl EAEEERE)

JESREE REHRE  LREETEHEEN M
Bk ZISEIESzIfZ\:—inL A=+—8H
IFFEREEEARIE INEL AR2,584,700,000
L R T F# AR 1,359,400,0007T E F
90.1% °

EF

REBMHEF INARIEINEL A R 777,900,000
T M E T F 4 AR%181,100,0007T £ FH LY
A R #596,800,0007T 2% 1 £329.5%  EF EFH=

BREAREFAREEEFRFMBEEZFS - W
ReBBEEH BWE—CRELEDERES
BIREREMHKAREEEEERAANER
A ERRFAE301% BT - TFEH13.3%
tl:? 16 8EE DB -

EEENWNR DT
Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Outlook

In order to counteract elevating inflation, the Federal Reserve of the United
States of America starts to raise interest rate and curtail the size of bonds
held on its balance sheet, signaling the beginning of an era of interest rate
hikes; while the European Central Bank is also considering to raise interest
rates in the near future. More contagious variants of the COVID-19 are
spreading rapidly which have disturbed logistics and supply chains globally.
The aforementioned changes in the macro economic environment will
inevitably affect the future balance between market supply and demand
of the products of the Group as well as the trend of the costs of raw
materials and the price of products. It is imperative for the Group to adopt
even more resilience of sales and marketing strategies to withstand the
changes in market, while the Group continues to dedicate its efforts in
improving its internal operational efficiency. The Group will explore new
potential business opportunities in a proactive and steady manner and
seize them precisely. Moreover, the Group will constantly reinforce the
investment in optimising its production process, especially in terms of
safety and environmental protection in order to enhance its sustainable
business model in the future. The Board still has full confidence in the
future business development of the Group despite of the challenges in the
near future. The Group will consistently adhere to its prudent and steady
operating approach and endeavour to contribute the long-term stability
and growth of the Group for the Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year under review, certain downstream markets of the Group
have continued to expand as a result of the change of external factors as
set out in the section headed “Business Review” of this report. Thus, the
market demands of the products of the Group remained buoyant and
boosted the revenue of the Group. The selling price of certain products of
the Group increased substantially and hit record high. Coupled with the
flexibility and resilience of the sales and marketing strategies adopted by
the Group to respond rapidly to the ever-changing market conditions. The
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 significantly
increased to approximately RMB2,584.7 million or growth of 90.1% as
compared with approximately RMB1,359.4 million in 2020.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group also considerably increased to approximately
RMB777.9 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB596.8
million or growth of 329.5% as compared with approximately RMB181.1
million in 2020. The increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to the
consolidation and improvement of production activities of the Group in the
previous year, thereby enhancing the overall productivities. Consequently,
it helped to mitigate, to a certain extent, the negative impacts of the surge
in the costs of raw materials and production overheads incurred due to the
high inflation. The gross profit margin rose to 30.1%, increased by 16.8
percentage points when compared with 13.3% in 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Operating income and expenses

The other income was mainly comprised of (i) various grants received
from the PRC governmental authorities being incentives to encourage the
Group's business development; (i) bank interest income; (iii) rental income;
and (iv) other income during the year under review.

The selling expenses increased by approximately RMB33.6 million to
approximately RMB85.1 million (2020: RMB51.5 million) during the year
under review. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the inflated
transportation cost related to overseas sales because of the global logistics
constraint caused by the Pandemic; and (ii) the increase in export trade
credit insurance expenses. The selling expenses to the Group’s revenue was
3.3% (2020: 3.8%).

During the year under review, the administrative and other operating
expenses increased by approximately RMB58.5 million from approximately
RMB98.7 million in 2020 to approximately RMB157.2 million in 2021.
The increase was mainly attributable to (i) an increase in research
and development expenses which primarily incurred in relation to the
optimisation of the upstream products layout and the enhancement of
production efficiency; (ii) an increase in written-off of property, plant
and equipment caused by impairments arising from the insignificant and
uncertain future cash inflow of the production facilities; and (iii) an increase
in provision for specific doubtful debts. Administrative and other operating
expenses to the Group’s revenue was 6.1% (2020: 7.3%).

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly represented bank borrowings interest and interest
for advances from the ultimate holding company, which decreased by
approximately RMB4.9 million from approximately RMB11.4 million in
2020 to approximately RMB6.5 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the weighted average amount of bank
borrowings.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company
As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group achieved an increase in

profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company to approximately
RMB379.7 million (2020: RMB94.8 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Trade and bills receivable

As at 31 December 2021, the trade receivables increased to approximately
RMB337.1 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB174.8
million or 107.7% as compared with approximately RMB162.3 million
recorded as at 31 December 2020. About 94.3% of trade receivables were
incurred in the last quarter of 2021 and most of them were not yet due
and 3.2% of trade receivables were incurred in the third quarter of 2021.
Only 2.5% of trade receivables were over 180 days. Up to the date of
this report, over 88.0% of trade receivables have been settled. Thus, the
Directors considered that the current bad debt allowance is adequate on
the balance of trade receivables as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the bills receivable was of an amount of
approximately RMB175.6 million, increased by approximately RMB86.7
million or 97.5% as compared with the balance of approximately
RMB88.9 million as at 31 December 2020. Since all bills receivable are
bank acceptance bills, which are non-interest bearing and most of them
have a maximum maturity period of six months, the payments of which
were guaranteed by the licensed banks in the PRC. As a result, the default
risk is considered minimal. Accordingly, the Directors considered that no
allowance for doubtful debt is required.

Prepayments and other receivables

The receivables of compensation arising from the resumption of the land
(the “Land Resumption”) which originally occupied by the production
site of Weifang Parasia was recognised as other receivables under current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. During the year
under review, Weifang Parasia received a total amount of approximately
RMB125.9 million (2020: RMB20.0 million) in respect of the compensation.
As at 31 December 2021, the remaining balance of the compensation
receivable was approximately RMB49.9 million (31 December 2020:
RMB175.8 million). For further details, please refer to note 19 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Short-term bank borrowings and the principal amounts
of advances from ultimate holding company

All bank borrowings are at floating annual interest rates ranging from
4.8% to 5.66% and are denominated in Renminbi. As at 31 December
2021, bank borrowings decreased to RMB60.0 million, representing a net
decrease of RMB50.0 million or 45.5% as compared with the balance
of RMB110.0 million as at 31 December 2020. The principal amounts of
advances from ultimate holding company were at a fixed annual interest
rate of 2.0% and denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
principal amounts of advances from ultimate holding company decreased
to approximately RMB90.0 million (2020: RMB102.1 million) as at 31
December 2021. The decreases in short-term bank borrowings and the
principal amounts of advances from ultimate holding company were mainly
due to the improvement of operating cash flow during the year under
review.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included the net cash inflow
generated from operating activities of approximately RMB274.3 million
(2020: RMB170.5 million); newly raised bank borrowings of RMB60.0
million (2020: RMB110.0 million); an increase of the principal amounts of
advances from ultimate holding company of approximately RMB1.7 million
(2020: RMB40.0 million); compensation received for the Land Resumption
of approximately RMB125.9 million (2020: RMB20.0 million); proceeds
on disposals of property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB2.4
million (2020: RMB8.4 million); and bank interest received of approximately
RMBO0.7 million (2020: RMB1.0 million). With the financial resources
obtained from the Group’s operations, the Group had spent approximately
RMB213.5 million (2020: RMB215.9 million) on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment; no incurrence of payment for right-of-use assets
(2020: RMB1.1 million); repayments of bank borrowings of RMB110.0
million (2020: RMB170.0 million); interest paid of approximately RMB5.4
million (2020: RMB9.4 million), repayment of advances from ultimate
holding company of approximately RMB13.7 million (2020: Nil); and
dividend paid of approximately RMB21.4 million (2020: Nil) during the year
under review. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank and cash
balances and pledged bank deposits of approximately RMB226.3 million
(2020: RMB125.3 million), of which 92.1% was held in Renminbi, 5.8%
was held in United States dollars and the remaining balances were held in
Hong Kong dollars and euros.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB530.9 million (2020: RMB214.3 million), the current
ratio of the Group was approximately 2.0 times (2020: 1.4 times). The
total amount of outstanding borrowings of the Group was approximately
RMB155.2 million (2020: RMB217.2 million). The improvement in the
profitability of the Group during the year under review established a
stronger financial position for the Group and attained a net cash balance
(total cash and cash equivalent net of total borrowings) of approximately
RMB71.2 million (2020: a net liability balance of approximately RMB91.9
million, the gearing ratio of the Group represented by the ratio of total
borrowings net of bank and cash balances and pledged bank deposits to
total shareholders’ equity was 6.6%) as at 31 December 2021.

The Group is continuously upgrading or replacing its outdated production
facilities to secure its sustainable business development in the future and
devotes to uphold a solid financial position simultaneously. Benefiting
from a steady positive cash inflow from operating activities, coupled with
the available cash resources on hand and undrawn banking facilities
from banks, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
present commitments and working capital requirements. The Group will
monitor its cash outflow closely, cautiously and be dedicated to maintain
a sound financial position as well as improving the equity return to the
Shareholders.



Br# CIRE (45)
BEEEMA

RZZE-——F+-A=+—8 BOIEHOAR
#3000 ERBEFBA R S S BRE - UBL— R
FNRGERRB(ZE-TF D /IPRITER
HAREET,000C BIEFERAREFRE) o

HAREE

RIEBE-—F+_F=+—H AEBELETW
EAFAREB(ZZE-_FF: &) o

IR

R-ZT-—F+-A=+—8 A£EEFHE
R 2 A IE B R Y AR 886,300,000t (ZF =
T4 ARM120,500,0007T)  TiiH MUK EE YD EE
MERREARIERETR - B BHEERET
H 2 BAREEEIBL A RM®E214,300,0007T (= F
— T4 ARKES4,300,0007T) ¢ T MURBEYEE
= R AR TR -

MEREZBUIR

AEBRERMEREBBREMEENTTEH - AU
HO#FRENPHIR L BERENE BN
BRk AEEEHRTESTR  UERAR
WM B ERENELERRKRERT -

REARENREREHREK  AEESRERE
(EREERE)eZARHNBASRERR X
SEEESRE  WBEEPHAREER EHANIR
SMREFEMRENATBHRITRE - USH
FLENABREBRABHEAHIRHES

ZRER B0 [0 BA AR IR 30 R B AL & B T AL (R E %
A% REARASENEHREZAARBET
AREEABOEREERABINAREE
At - AEE TG AXERGEER LEXER -

AEENMERREBZRERITENR - SEER
EERRAMAMERER - BNEMESPHE MmN
BOEAEFRGRLBERTHLEATES]
e AEEAEERTMETEZHNGHTER
MR E L RKF -

EEENWNR DT
Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, a bank balance of approximately R\MB3,000 was
frozen to secure a litigation case under the PRC court order (2020: a bank
deposit amount of approximately RMB7,000 was pledged for payable for
legal proceeding fee).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2020: Nil).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments which has been
contracted but not yet been provided for in the aggregate amount of
approximately RMB86.3 million (2020: RMB120.5 million), for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment as well as construction in progress, while
the capital commitment for authorised but not contracted for in aggregate
amount of approximately RMB214.3 million (2020: RMB84.3 million)
related to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as well as
construction in progress.

Funding and treasury policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach on its funding and treasury
policies, which aims to maintain an optimal financial position and minimise
the Group's financial risks. The Group regularly reviews its funding
requirements to secure adequate financial resources to support its business
operations and future investments as and when needed.

Cash flow forecast is properly prepared and reviewed regularly by the
senior management of the Group (the “Senior Management”), which
facilitates the Group to maintain an adequate level of cash and cash
equivalents, and sufficient available banking facilities to finance the daily
operations and capital expenditure requirements in the foreseeable future
pursuant to the funding and treasury policies of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for any hedging purposes as the Group’s businesses are
principally conducted in Renminbi and most of the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi. Accordingly, the Group
is not subject to significant currency risk and foreign exchange rate risk.

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings. In
order to minimise the borrowing cost and interest rate risk, any raising of
loans to meet the expected funding demand must be assessed carefully
and approved by the executive Directors. The Group will consider new
financing needs while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group’s operations are mainly in the PRC and its assets, liabilities,
revenues and transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi, United
States dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s foremost exposure to the foreign exchange fluctuations
was caused by the impact of Renminbi exchange rate movements during
the year under review. Most of the Group’s income and expenses are
denominated in Renminbi except for export sales which were, in majority,
denominated in United States dollars. However, the Group has not
experienced any material difficulties or effects on its operations or liquidity
as a result of the fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year
under review. Besides, the Group will consider adoption of cost efficient
hedging methods in future foreign currency transactions as and when
appropriate.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,403 (2020: 1,368) full-time
employees.

For the year under review, the total staff costs including the Directors’
remuneration increased to approximately RMB167.1 million (2020:
RMB128.4 million).

The Group has established its human resource policies and scheme with
a view to deploying the incentives and rewards of the remuneration
system which includes a wide range of training and personal development
programs to the employees. The remuneration package offered to the
employees was in line with the duties and the prevailing market terms.
Staff benefits, including medical coverage and provident funds, have also
been provided to the employees of the Group.

The employees would receive discretionary bonuses and monetary rewards
based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals of the Group.
The Group also offers rewards or other incentives to the employees in
order to motivate their personal growth and career development, such as
ongoing opportunities for training to enhance their technical and products
knowledge as well as their understanding of industry quality standards. All
new employees of the Group are required to attend an induction course
and there are also various types of training courses available to all the
Group's employees.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. During the year under review, the
Company has granted 18,000,000 share options to the Directors and the
eligible employees to recognise their contribution to the Group. For further
details of the grant of share options, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 30 August 2021.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal business
of the Group includes research and development, manufacture and sale of
fine chemical products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on pages 55 of this annual report.

During the year under review, the Directors did not declare any interim
dividend (2020: Nil).

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.20
(2020: HK$0.03) per Share. The final dividend is tentatively to be
distributed by the Company on or about Thursday, 4 August 2022 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 20 July 2022, which is subject to the approval of
the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The objective of the Company’s dividend policy is to allow the Shareholders
to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves
for the Group’s future growth. The Company may declare and pay
dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate. The declaration and distribution of dividends is
subject to the discretion of the Board and taking into account the following
factors:

- the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

- the balances of retained profit and distributable reserves of the
Company;

- the level of debts ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial
covenants of the Group;

- any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed to the
Group;

- the expected working capital requirements and future business plans
of the Group;

- general economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group; and

- any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 19



EE®RE

Directors’ Report

E¥KEEREKE

AEEHE T - —F+_A=+—HILFEZ
EBRBESANANERFASSE Z [MEBEERTE
FHHME] Fe20B 2 [EEREINENRE18E
2 EBEBFWEDN] -

AEEER HEER FPREBBHIEAR
BERROMBE AEERNEEERZITYRE
BZRE REFPRERHEEEM MRS - Wik
HEBBHEHENEE -

BRERERER

REEEFERFEZ  HHEREMNENERER
EHE - BBTAISOI4000RIBEIRE X A&
EENREHREEEE N  HEMERELIRE
WA E A - BNBEBRFE RO D HERUS 2 -

AREBEKUREEE/NE  NEBAEEEE
AMRAEE AEEVEEPENEMNBREN
EEMNRRRBRTZTE  EMARMEAEE
FRRAENRE -AEEEFEFEER K
FERRENRRER - E -_ZTMFHKBN
1ISO1400 1 IRIE BB R RFE o AEE 8-
HIT-RE-THINEEETRERITH T=RE
ERTE- ASBEREMEHSEEEILER
BEBRRREE - AEBETBEREELR B
BIREE HER2OBRREEHNE  BRED
PTURIRIRTTEY : (VRADRE : (DVBRBEA  (ER
BiE: MWFRABRREAG 2EBEEAEEDN
E5E8)  WEREEREENEEZ -

AEEBEERRFERSIFE  WHRALED
RTMEETE - AEBERREEERAALE
REFRB BB =R $Z - AR
1B R R AT B ERAT - RN AE -
RRTFHERRIKGAORIEERRT B
BREEFRTCOKBHZLTERET - AEEREEHZ
BEYRE BRBM BHISRYBER L[
BERHZEMBENTIESH - AZMFIN
TEEEMREEE -

20 RECTERERAT —Z-—FFH

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
is set out in the sections of Financial Highlights and Five Years Financial
Summary, Chairman'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 4 to 5, pages 6 to 9 and pages 12 to 18 respectively of this
annual report.

The Group recognises that its employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing
quality products and services to its customers and enhancing co-operation
with its business partners.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to maintaining a clean, energy saving and
harmonious environmental conservation policy. Through the compliance
of 1SO14000 environmental management system, the Group improves
its environmental management ability so as to achieve environmental
optimisation, pollution minimisation, energy saving and reduction of
pollutant emissions.

The Group has established an environmental management team to oversee
all environmental issues group-wide. The Group has also implemented
well-defined job specifications and a sound environmental performance
evaluation program so as to improve the environmental performance
of the Group from time to time. The Group has complied with the
environmental requirements laid down by the states and local authorities
in the PRC as well as obtaining ISO14001 environmental management
system certification since 2004. The Group has consistently improved
environmental management through the plan-do-check-act quality
management principle. The Group uses its best endeavour to promote
environmental friendly practices to both suppliers and customers. The
Group pursues clean production processes, promotes circular economy,
maintains sound environmental rules and regulations and actively promotes
the 4Rs (reduce, recycle, reuse and replace) throughout all the Group’s
business activities to realise emission reduction targets.

The Group maintains its products to the highest standards and adopts
advanced technology and production processes. The Group is taking
steps to make sure all production line construction projects are strictly
adopting the “Three Simultaneous System”, to ensure the concepts of
prevention of pollution facilities are incorporated into the project design,
construction and production at the same time. Environmental protection is
in place throughout the process from product design to finished product.
Clean production audit is in place and it is performed on a regular basis.
The Group actively implements the waste treatment and recycling,
controls pollutant emission, and provides a safety and healthy workplace
to employees with an aim to improve their quality of working life and
environment.



EMOoERRR(E)
BREERRR (&)

AEBBGHEDE2E2ERFRE T LB
BERERERENEMRFRTIERERESE
BEMRREREBME N - REBRERTER
FEREBEBRREAZRGEIBR HFE EE7
RI(EBAR]D  TRHEERRTEH M IER
BEER] - AREHERENERREREE
SIER] - BEENRENMMIE  EHERNETRE

MERBARFERE - HRIBEARFEAXREZAE
| AEEETERRRARTE2EE THRE
FEZRES - MEMZERIR AT - BREMRERE
MWBEH - UREEBRITRERE  CERNMLEEE -

FERBRMAABREE

BEIETERS I RIERENREINIERNE
BN RIBEBEDFE622F A B GG A B E R
T ASEATESNERRR K THAREDT -

REEE R

1. EREBERRRE  FRITENQERBM
RHIBAME T B2+ B H5) KRS
SSEEIESE SRR SIS G PNl
@,

AEBRFOGNEMES  HELEZH
EPE-EEeRIERMSHRN  XHER
FEHRME S EHEE -

2. AKERBEFEENTREUARNERERIMA
ML EMAE S BRAIAREEH AL
BIER TR -

REETNRRE - BBHERSCERAER -
77 85 37 B R AR EE AT

EE®RE

Directors’ Report

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Environmental policies and performance (Continued)

The Group proactively promotes all employees to participate in
environmental conservation. The Group strives to raise environmental
awareness and competence among its employees through environmental
protection rules and regulations and environmental work skills. The Group,
based on the evaluation of current laws and regulations as well as the
significant environmental factors, formulates an “Objectives, Targets,
Management Scheme” (the “Management Scheme”), and improves the
“corrective and preventive measures” of environmental aspects from time
to time. The Group developed a comprehensive “Significant Environmental
Factors Contingency Plan”. The implementation of the Management
Scheme and the corrective and preventive measures can effectively control
the significant environmental factors. In accordance with “Significant
Environmental Factors Contingency Plan”, the Group performs drilling
regularly to improve environmental emergency response capacity of all
employees so as to achieve the objectives of reducing pollution, energy
conservation, and environmental protection as well as conscientiously
fulfilling environmental protection, corporate and social responsibility.

Principal risks and uncertainties

In addition to the matters reported in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis, the following are the principal risks
and uncertainties that the Group is facing in pursuant to the disclosure
requirement of Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

Strategic risks

1. Unfavourable conditions in the global economy, economic
fluctuations in customers’ industries and volatility and cyclicality of
the global fine chemicals markets (especially the PRC market) may
adversely affect the results of the Group.

The Group maintains a balanced portfolio of products to serve a
broad spectrum of customers. The Board is closely monitoring market
conditions and corrective actions are taken imminently as and when
necessary.

2. The ability of the Group to compete is highly dependent on its
abilities to develop technological innovations and to introduce new
products. Failure to do so could have an adverse effect on the Group.

The Group continues to invest in improving existing products,

developing new products and new production technologies through
research and development.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

Strategic risks (Continued)

3.

The failure of the Group to procure/produce key raw materials may
lead to production interruptions. Besides, sharp volatility in the prices
of such raw materials and energy prices may adversely affect the
profitability of the Group and its working capital position.

Sourcing strategies of the Group are in place to access multiple
supply channels for key raw materials and the Group works closely
with key suppliers to maintain a reliable and high-quality supply
of goods/services. The Group strives to identify suitable alternative
raw materials where possible. The Group actively monitors its profit
margins and uses best endeavor to recover increase in input costs
from customers.

Operational risks

1.

Compliance with extensive environmental, health and safety laws and
regulations could lead to incurring material expenditures or changes
in the operations of the Group. The manufacturing, storage and
transportation of chemicals is inherently dangerous and any incidents
relating to the hazards which the Group faces may adversely affect
its financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Detailed safety, health and environmental processes are documented
in operating manuals which are updated and circulated to employees
on a regular basis. Sound maintenance programs are in place in order
to ensure that the facilities meet the local statutory requirements. The
Group established a safety, health and environmental department
dedicated to safety, health and environmental issues and ensure the
programs for continuous improvement across all major safety, health
and environmental areas are in place group-wide.

The ongoing success of the Group depends on attracting and
retaining high quality senior management and staff who can
effectively manage the Group’s operations.

The Group offers competitive compensation packages with annual
performance bonuses and long-term incentive arrangements (e.g.
share options) for key employees. Appropriate notice periods and
non-compete clauses are used to mitigate short-term risk arising
from the departure of key employees. The Group has established a
succession plan for key positions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

Financial risks

1. The Group’s statement of financial position and cash flow or credit
market conditions and credit ratings may restrict the ability of the
Group to obtain new credit facilities. In addition, upward interest
rate fluctuations and increases in bank lending margins may increase
the Group’s costs of borrowing.

The management of the Group closely monitors cash flow and
working capital performance on a timely basis to ensure it has
a sound liquidity position and sufficient level of cash and cash
equivalents to finance the Group’s operations. The management of
the Group regularly reviews the relevant loan covenants (if applicable)
for bank borrowings as well as the interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise. Details of the liquidity risk and interest rate risk are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

2. Customers’ credit risk will cause a financial loss if the counterparties
fail to discharge their obligations.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group only extends
credit to customers based on careful evaluation of the customers’
financial background and credit history. In addition, the management
of the Group reviews the assessment of expected credit losses at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate losses
allowance are made for expected irrecoverable amounts. Details
of the customers’ credit risk are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

2022 AGM will be held on Friday, 24 June 2022. For further information
regarding the 2022 AGM, Shareholders should refer to the circular of the
Company dated 25 April 2022, the notice of the 2022 AGM and the form
of proxy accompanying thereto.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the 2022 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 21 June 2022 to Friday, 24 June 2022, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the 2022
AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates should
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716 on the 17th Floor of Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
20 June 2022.

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders who qualify for the
proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
18 July 2022 to Wednesday, 20 July 2022, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates should be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716 on the 17th Floor
of Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 July 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year under review.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five years summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group is set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group on pages 61 and 62 of this annual report and note 29 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company can be used for paying distributions or dividends
to Shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum and articles
of association and provided that immediately following the distribution
of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders amounted in total to
approximately RMB533.6 million (2020: RMB322.0 million).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year under review, the Group spent approximately RMB213.5
million (2020: RMB215.9 million) on property, plant and equipment
to expand its production capabilities. Details of the movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the year-end date.
The decrease in fair values of investment properties arose from revaluation
amounting to approximately RMB1.3 million (2020: RMB1.0 million) has
been charged to the consolidated income statement. Details of movements
in the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other
donations totaling approximately RMB60,000 (2020: RMB56,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for 22.4% (2020: 14.5%) of the Group's total
revenue, whilst the revenue attributable to the Group'’s largest customer
was 13.7% (2020: 4.2%).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for 38.6% (2020: 38.6%) of the Group's total
purchases, whilst the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
was 14.9% (2020: 12.7%).

At no time during the year under review did any Director, any associate
of a Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the issued Shares) has an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year under review and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Yang

Mr. Wang Zijiang

Mr. Chen Xiaohua (appointed on 1 January 2021)
Non-executive Director:

Mr. Guo Yucheng (resigned with effect from 1 January 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Leung Kam Wan
Mr. Liu Chenguang
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

In accordance with article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association
(the "Articles of Association”), Mr. Liu Yang and Mr. Gao Baoyu shall retire
from office by rotation at the 2022 AGM, each of them, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2022 AGM.

All non-executive Directors were appointed for an initial term of not more
than three years and the terms will be renewed automatically for successive
term of three years until terminated by not less than one month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

The executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years and thereafter shall continue from year
to year until terminated by giving three months’ notice in writing thereof
by either party to the other.

No person proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
set out in this report and note 35 to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 on “Related Party Transactions”, no contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report, no Directors are considered to have an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”) and their
associates in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO™)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

RBRBZHER Long position in the Shares
FsROBE,/  REBRESE
RERE RFEZBREZE HERTRHLE
EENS /TETR Number of  Number of share B4 E 2 (%)
N AR/ HEEEER Shares held/ options held Approximate % in
Name of Director/ Name of company/ interestin  according to share 513 the total issued
Chief Executive associated corporation the Shares option schemes  Capacity Shares
(BzE1)
(Note 1)
Bt - - 5000000 E#HEBA 0.59%
Mr. Liu Yang Beneficiary owner
FFI%E FEEEERAR ((FE])(FE2) 159,120,000 - REFEER 18.68%
Mr. Wang Zijiang Cheerhill Group Limited Interest of controlled
("Cheerhill”) (Note 2) corporation
140,000 - EBzER 0.02%
(H353) Interest of spouse
(Note 3)
BEKEE Hi& (Ff5E2) 39,780,000 - REFEER 4.67%
Mr. Guo Yucheng Cheerhill (Note 2) Interest of controlled
corporation
R 5 A () - 72,000 4,460,000 EREBA 0.53%
Mr. Chen Xiaohua Beneficiary owner
(Note 4)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

1. These represent the Shares to be issued and allotted by the Company upon
exercise of the options granted under Share Option Schemes (as defined in
the section headed “Share Option Schemes” of this report).

2. As at 31 December 2021, the 612,000,000 Shares were held by Cheerhill,
the entire issued share capital of which is ultimately beneficially owned as to
38.0% by Mr. Liu Hongliang, 26.0% by Mr. Wang Zijiang, 11.5% by Ms. Sun
Jianhua, 11.5% by Ms. Zheng Hong, 6.5% by Mr. Guo Yucheng and 6.5%
by Mr. Fu Anxu. Mr. Wang Zijiang was an executive Director; while Mr. Guo
Yucheng was non-executive Director.

3. Shares held by the spouse of Mr. Wang Zijiang who is an executive Director,
and therefore an associate of Mr. Wang Zijiang.

4. Mr. Chen Xiaohua was appointed as a general manager of the Company and
executive Director on 1 August 2018 and 1 January 2021 respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executive nor
their associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions
in any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as at 31 December 2021.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2021, the register of substantial Shareholder
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows
that the following Shareholder had notified the Company of its relevant
interests in the issued Shares:

Long position of substantial Shareholder in the Shares
and/or underlying Shares

FEROEE,
RS R ESAEE B BITRMD AR
Number of Shares held/ BABEDE (%)

RRER interest in the Shares 54 Approximate % in
Name of Shareholder and aggregated interest Capacity the total issued Shares
S (B sE) 612,000,000 BEaEBA 71.84%
Cheerhill (Note) Beneficiary owner

B 3T Note:

R-ZZE=——F+=H=+—H " 612,000,0008% % {5 T3
MEERFE  H2PEBTRAHZEREE - T 7T
S CREEZL BULE FEIXNEERBELBE
DR B EZRHEA38.0%  26.0% * 11.5% * 11.5% »
6.5%%6.5% °

BRENFIBEEN R _—F+_A=+—
B AQEEEEAA TSR G SARRE IR
R BB EREES B GIIANE AT
ZREIRE  REEARBREBEES LG K
15336117 E 2 B MP L R TORE -
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As at 31 December 2021, the 612,000,000 Shares were held by Cheerhill, the entire
issued share capital of which is ultimately beneficially owned as to 38.0% by Mr. Liu
Hongliang, 26.0% by Mr. Wang Zijiang, 11.5% by Ms. Sun Jianhua, 11.5% by
Ms. Zheng Hong, 6.5% by Mr. Guo Yucheng and 6.5% by Mr. Fu Anxu.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person who had any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares as at 31 December 2021, which are required to be notified to the
Company under the SFO or which are recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company, or any of its
holding company, its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 also constituted
connected transactions. The following transactions between certain
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group
have been entered into and/or are continuing for which relevant
announcements, if necessary, had been made by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to a lease (the “Lease”) entered into between Weifang Parasia
and Weifang Tianhong, Weifang Parasia leased the office premises owned
by Weifang Tianhong for a term of one year commencing from 1 January
2022 at a gross annual rental payment of RMB540,000, payable on a
pro-rata basis at the end of each quarter. Weifang Tianhong is a connected
person to the Company as Mr. Wang Zijiang is an executive Director and
Mr. Guo Yucheng is an non-executive Director who have voting right on
operations of Weifang Tianhong, the entering into the Lease constituted
an exempted connected transaction of the Company.

Pursuant to loan agreements entered by Cheerhill with the Company
and Weifang Binhai separately (the “Loans”) on 1 September 2018
and revolving yearly, Cheerhill agreed to finance the Group to meet the
Group's working capital requirements. Such Loans are unsecured and bear
interest rate at 2.0% per annum, and due for repayment within one year.
During the year, the Loans from Cheerhill to the Company have been fully
settled while Cheerhill and Weifang Binhai entered into supplementary
agreements to extend the repayment date of the Loans to 2022.

The above Lease is de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules and the Loans are financial assistance from connected person
under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules thus they were exempted from
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Apart from the above transactions, other related party transactions set out
in note 35 to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 did not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above and in note 35 to the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021, there were no other transactions which
need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance, between
the Company, controlling Shareholders, or any of its subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries or in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, or which are required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year under
review.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or
existed during the year under review.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During this financial year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes
for the benefit of the directors (including former directors) of the Company
or its associated companies. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought against
such directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Group is set up by the Board on the basis of
the merit, qualifications and competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management will be reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to factors including the
Group's operating results, responsibilities required of the Directors and
Senior Management and the comparable market statistics.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Under the share option schemes adopted by the Company on 4 October
2006 (the “2006 Share Option Scheme”) and 20 May 2016 (the 2016
Share Option Scheme”) respectively, share options would be granted to
certain Directors, employees and other eligible participants of the Company
entitling them to subscribe for shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the
Company. The 2006 Share Option Scheme was expired and terminated on
20 May 2016.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of all
options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme and other share option schemes in aggregate shall not exceed
30% of the number of issued Shares from time to time. The total number
of Shares issued and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
(whether exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted in any 12-month
period to each participant must not exceed 1% of the number of Shares
in issue unless approved by the Shareholders in a general meeting. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2016 Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board,
which must not be more than ten years from the date of grant. Any Share
allotted and issued on the exercise of options will rank pari passu with
other Shares in issue on the date of allotment. The 2016 Share Option
Scheme will remain effective for a period of ten (10) years commencing
from 20 May 2016.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the eligible participants that become grantees. Each share option
will be vested immediately at the date when the option is accepted. The
share options will lapse immediately after the grantee ceases to be eligible
participant of the Group. The options will lapse due to the expiry of the
option’s exercise period.

The subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
options shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
a Share on the date of grant. The subscription price will be established by
the Board at the time the option is offered to the participants.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Details of the movement in outstanding share options, which have been

ZEERFHERESE R T NFERMEETE  granted under the 2006 Share Option Scheme and the 2016 Share Option
g ﬁﬁlﬁ%fﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬂiéz ERCLCENE Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2021 are shown as follows:
EnRE
5
BhREtE
REY o RER
HATE Granted HRTE
Qutstanding underthe 2016 EAFE  FAXH  Outstanding
ik at  ShareOption  Exercised Lapsed atthe
ARAEH ]k it GREH Exerdse  hbeginning Scheme during during during end of
Category of grantee  Date of grant  Exercise period Vlesting period price of year the year the year the year the year
Loy i S Sk 1V ZEC-E)\R=THE AR08 - 2500000 - - 2500000
M Liu Yang \Hja ZECN\EAZ AR ZEIZENAZThA HKS0.908
30 August 2021 30 August 2022 to 29 August 2028 30 August 2021 to 29 August 2022
“Eo-F ZEIZEN\ASTHE ZEC-EN\A=TRE BH09087C - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
NAZTB  ZZZ\ENAZTAE :?:‘% \AZthE HK$0.908
30 August 2021 30 August 2023 to 29 August 2028 30 August 2021 to 29 August 2023
REErE(W) —%-1f e—/ﬁt)ﬁai E-RECATRE AR5 160,000 - - - 160,000
Mr. Chen Yiaohua (Note ) +A TR TRCZELANA ZE-RELANE HK$1.45
10July2015 10 July 2016 10 9 July 2023 10 July 2015 t0 9 July 2016
E-1%f ZE-rEUATEE E-RECATRE BT 300,000 - - - 300,000
tAtH “ECZECANA ZE-CELANE HKS1.45
10July 2015 10 July 2017 t0 9 July 2023 10 July 201510 9 July 2017
“Eo-F ZEICE)\AZTRE ZEC-EN\R=TRE BH09087C - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
MIZtE ZEZ)\ENAZtAR ZEZZENAZTAR HK$0.908
30 August 2021 30 August 2022 to 29 August 2028 30 August 2021 to 29 August 2022
o S ‘*‘:i \A=t+HE i S \H‘ﬂi 509087 - 2000000 - - 2000000
MiZtR  ZE\ENAZTHE ZECZEN\AZThE HK$0.908
30 August 2021 30 August 2023 to 29 August 2028 30 August 2021 to 29 August 2023
EEAxt (i) —T-1f  ZF-tEtATAR E-RECATRE BT 140,000 - - 14000 -
Ms. ShiHufang (Note )~ + A+ B “ECCELANA “E-tELANA HK$1.45
10July 2015 10 July 2017 t0 9 July 2023 10 July 201510 9 July 2017
I TR CEAREATRE “E-1FLATRE BRIST 3148000 - - 60000 3,088,000
Employees tATH ZEIEELANA ZE-RELANA HK$1.45
10July 2015 10 July 2016 10 9 July 2023 10 July 201510 9 July 2016
5-1f --—tit)ﬁai E-RECATRE EEIST 5236000 - - 200000 5036000
tAtH ZECZELANA ZE-tELANE HK$1 45
10July2015 10 July 2017 10 9 July 2023 10 July 2015 t0 9 July 2017
“B-F CRCCENASTEE ZEC-E\R=THE AR08 - 4500000 - - 4500000
\ﬂjﬁ ZECNENIZTAE ZEIZENAZTHA HK$0.908
30 August 2021 30 August 2022 to 29 August 2028 30 August 2021 to 29 August 2022
“ET-F ZEIZE\AZTRE ZEC-EN\A=TRE BH09087C - 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000
NA=TB  ZEZ)ENAZTAR :?::% \AZthE HK$0.908
30 August 2021 30 August 2023 to 29 August 2028 30 August 2021 to 29 August 2023
8984000 18,000,000 - 400000 26,584,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Chen Xiaohua was appointed as a general manager of the Company and
executive Director on 1 August 2018 and 1 January 2021 respectively.

(ii) Ms. Shi Huifang is the spouse of Mr. Wang Zijiang who is an executive
Director and therefore an associate of Mr. Wang Zijiang. She was no longer
an employee of Weifang Parasia since July 2021.

The fair value of the existing share options of the Company calculated is
inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the
limitations of the model used. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in variables so
adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
Further details are set out in note 30 to the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

On 30 August 2021, the Company has granted 18,000,000 share options
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme. The closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
27 August 2021 (the day immediately before the options granted) was
HK$0.89. As at 31 December 2021, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the 2016 Share Option Scheme is 66,687,800 which
represents 7.87% and 7.83% of the issued Share as at 20 May 2016 (the
date of which the 2016 Share Option Scheme has been adopted by the
Company) and as at the date of this annual report, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF BEST PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining the high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 35 to 49 of this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. After specific enquiry by the
Company, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended
31 December 2021.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited (“BDO").

A resolution will be proposed at 2022 AGM to re-appoint BDO as the
independent auditor of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event of the Group after 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report, except that Cheerhill and Mr. Liu
Hongliang ceased to be the controlling Shareholder on 15 February 2022.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 February 2022.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Yang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2021, the Company had adopted the principles and complied with the
requirements set out in the “Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In respect of code provisions E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company has
formally informed in advance and agreed by the independent auditor of
the Company to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 11 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM"). Unfortunately, the representative of
independent auditor of the Company failed to attend the 2021 AGM due
to an unpredictable traffic congestion. In order to avoid the recurrence
of the same issue, the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) has reminded the independent auditor of the Company that
attending annual general meeting is part of its obligation under CG Code
and it should comply with it in the future annual general meetings of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not during the
year under review, in compliance with the CG Code.

The Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the Company
periodically to ensure the practices continue to fulfill the CG Code
requirements. The key corporate governance practices of the Group are
summarised as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roles of Directors

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The strategic
business direction of the Group and objectives for management has
been formulated by the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
operation responsibility to the management under the supervision of the
general manager of the Company and various Board committees. The
Board reviews the performance of the Group against the pre-determined
targets and budgets on a regular basis.

Corporate governance function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which mainly include (i) developing and reviewing policies and
practices on corporate governance; (ii) monitoring and revising policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as
appropriate; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior Management; (iv)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
to employees and Directors; (v) reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of
the Company; (vi) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s process of
information disclosure, including assessing and verifying the accuracy and
materiality of inside information and determine the form and content of
any required disclosure; (vii) reviewing the effectiveness of the committee
structure of the Board and the terms of reference of all Board committees
and their accountability for the corporate governance practices and make
amendment(s) as appropriate; and (viii) reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s communication policy with Shareholders and its stakeholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Corporate governance function (Continued)

During the year under review, the Board had (i) reviewed, updated and/
or formulated the communication policy, code of conduct applicable
to employees of the Group and Directors, corporate governance policy,
inside information disclosure policy, risk management policy, internal
control policy, whistleblowing policy, dividend policy, nomination policy
("Nomination Policy”), Board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) and
code for dealing in securities policy of the Company etc.; (i) reviewed and
assessed the training records of Directors; (iii) reviewed or updated the
effectiveness of the committees structure of the Board and the terms of
reference of all Board committees and their accountability for the corporate
governance practices; and (iv) reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and the disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.

Composition

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. With effect from 1 January 2022, the composition
of Board has changed to three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 10 to 11 of this annual report. The composition of the Board
is well balanced with each Director having sound knowledge, experience
and/or expertise relevant to the business operations and development of
the Group. The independent non-executive Directors, with at least one
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise, who offer diversified expertise and
experience, contribute significantly to the important function of advising
management on strategy and policy development. All the Directors are
aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to the Shareholders
and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing
to the successful performance of the Group.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the Chairman, members of the Board and the
general manager of the Company. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgment. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and is satisfied with their independence in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

The Company maintains appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years and subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with
the Articles of Association.

According to the Article of Association, any new Director appointed by
the Board (in case of filling a casual vacancy or an addition to the existing
Board) is subject to retirement and re-election by Shareholders at the next
general meeting of the Company or at the next annual general meeting
of the Company (in case of an addition of Board member) following his
appointment. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, are required to retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who
have been the longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
but as between persons who become or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. To further enhance accountability, any
further re-appointment of an independent non-executive Director who has
served the Company for more than nine years will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the Shareholders.

Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company before
the expiration of his period of time (but without prejudice to any claim
which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any contract
between him and the Company).

Training

All Directors must keep abreast of their responsibilities as Directors and
of the business and activities of the Group. A briefing is provided and
organised to ensure that newly appointed Directors are familiar with
the role of the Board, their legal and other duties and responsibilities as
Director as well as the business and corporate governance practices of the
Group. The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
will continuously update all Directors on latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements so as to familiar
compliance of the same by all Directors.

During the year under review, all Directors received regular updates and/or
briefings on changes and developments to the Group’s business. Besides,
all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of reading materials relevant to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors are requested to provide
their records of training to the Company Secretary for record.

The Company Secretary has attended no less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the year
under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and general manager

The Chief Executive bears the title of general manager. In order to reinforce
the independence and accountability, the roles of the Chairman and
the general manager of the Company are segregated and performed by
Mr. Liu Yang and Mr. Chen Xiaohua respectively. There is a clear distinctive
responsibility of the Chairman to mainly provide leadership for the Board
and ensure the Board is functioning properly, with good corporate
governance practices and procedures, whilst the general manager of
the Company is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations,
implementing business strategies and policies approved by the Board,
developing and formulating the organisational structure, internal control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and general manager
of the Company has been clearly defined and set out in writing.

Board meeting

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every financial year. The
Directors participated in person or through electronic means of
communication. All regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
facilitate the possible fullest attendance. The meeting agenda is set after
consulting with members of the Board. Each Director is invited to present
any businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Directors are required to abstain from voting and will not be counted in
the quorum present in the Board meeting if any Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board.

The Directors have been invited to include any matters which they thought
appropriate in the agenda for the Board meetings. Notice of Board meeting
at least 14 days has been given to each Board member. Board papers are
circulated to all Directors not less than 3 days before the Board meetings
(or such other period as agreed) to ensure timely access to relevant
information. Each Director is able to access the management of the Group
separately and independently if more information is required. All Directors
are permitted to seek independent professional advice, if required, at the
Company’s expenses.

During the year under review, 4 Board meetings were held. The Directors
have discussed the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, including annual budgets, annual and interim
results, approval of major capital investments and other significant
operational and financial matters etc. The Directors are kept informed
on a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group's business,
including amendments to relevant rules and regulations. The Board's
papers and minutes of the Company are kept by the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. All draft and
final versions of minutes have been circulated to the Directors for review,
comment and record within 7 days after each Board meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board committees

The Board has established the following committees with defined terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company’s website and also available to Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Kam Wan, Mr. Gao Baoyu and Mr. Liu
Chenguang. Mr. Leung is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses recognised professional qualifications in accounting as required
by the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

() ensuring the Group’s financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and the auditor’s report present a true and balanced
assessment of the Group’s financial position and complying of the
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

(i) reviewing the Group’s financial and internal controls;
(iii)  reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

(ivy recommending the appointment and remuneration of the
independent auditor of the Company; and

(v)  other duties are set out in its specific terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had discussed the
following matters:

(i) reviewing the independence and objectivity of the independent
auditor of the Company and discussing with the independent auditor
of the Company the nature and scope of the audit for the year
ended 31 December 2021;

(i) reviewing the Group’s significant internal controls and financial
matters as set out in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference with
management of the Company;

(i)  reviewing the audit findings provided by the independent auditor of
the Company, and discussing with the Board on the matters where
action or improvement is needed,;

(iv)  reviewing the Group’s accounting principles and practices, Listing

Rules and statutory compliance, internal controls and financial
reporting matters;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(v)  reviewing the annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 and interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2021;

(vi)  reviewing the terms of remuneration of the independent auditor
of the Company with the Board on the re-appointment of the
independent auditor of the Company; and

(vii)  discussing and reminding the independent auditor of the Company
that attending annual general meeting is part of its obligation under
CG Code and it should comply with it in the future annual general
meetings of the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had also participated
to (i) review the self-assessment report on compliance of CG code; (ii)
evaluate the sufficiency of resources, the qualification and the experience
of the employees who were responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting of the Group, and the sufficiency of training courses received
by them; (iii) review and approve the annual budget of the Group; (iv)
review annual internal audit report of the Group; and (v) review the inside
information disclosure policy, risk management policy, internal control
policy and whistleblowing policy of the Company etc.

On 25 March 2022, the Audit Committee held a meeting to review the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Audit
Committee was satisfied that the accounting policies and practices adopted
by the Group are in accordance with the current best practices in Hong
Kong. The Audit Committee found no unusual items that were omitted
from the financial statements and was satisfied with the disclosures of
information as shown in the financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) is chaired by Mr. Liu Chenguang, an independent
non-executive Director, with Mr. Leung Kam Wan, an independent
non-executive Director, Mr. Gao Baoyu, an independent non-executive
Director and Mr. Liu Yang, an executive Director, as the three other
members. The majority members of the Remuneration Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
of individual Director and Senior Management, with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives as well as considering salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities,
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; (ii) reviewing
the Company’s share option scheme, bonus structure and other
compensation-related issues and making recommendations to the Board;
and (iii) other duties as set out in its specific terms of reference.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman on its proposals
and recommendations, and also has access to professional advice if
deemed necessary by the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee is also provided with other resources enabling it to discharge its
duties.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had (i)
reviewed the remuneration packages for all the Directors and the
Senior Management by reference to their responsibilities and duties,
the Group’s operating results and achieved corporate objectives, after
taking into account also the comparable market conditions and made
recommendations to the Board for approval; (ii) reviewed the remuneration
policy for the Directors and the Senior Management; and (iii) reviewed the
terms of service contract of the Directors. No Director shall participate in
any discussion and resolution about his own remuneration.

Mr. Liu Chenguang, being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
was unable to attend the 2021 AGM due to another business engagement.
Mr. Liu Yang, Mr. Gao Baoyu and Mr. Leung Kam Wan, who are the
members of the Remuneration Committee, acted as duly appointed
delegate of Mr. Liu Chenguang to answer questions at the 2021 AGM
according to the code provision F.2.2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Remuneration policy

The primary goal of the remuneration policy for Directors and Senior
Management is to enable the Group to retain and motivate executive
Directors and Senior Management by linking their compensation with
performance as measured against the corporate objectives of the Company.
The principal elements of the remuneration package for Directors and
Senior Management include basic salary, other benefits, discretionary
bonus and share option. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company will make reference to market remuneration surveys
on companies operating in similar business and comparable scale.

The remuneration of non-executive Directors mainly comprises directors’
fees which is subject to annual assessment with reference to the market
standard. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in connection with the performance of their duties including attending the
Company’s meetings.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) is chaired by Mr. Liu Yang, an executive Director, with Mr. Liu
Chenguang and Mr. Leung Kam Wan, as the two other members, both
are independent non-executive Directors. The majority members of the
Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and diversity of the Board and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors; (v) develop and review the
Board Diversity Policy; (vi) develop and review the Nomination Policy; and
(vii) discharge other duties as set out in its specific terms of reference. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the
Board which includes gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional and industry experience, skills, knowledge, length
of service and the legitimate interests of the principal Shareholder. The
Nomination Committee will also consider the merits and contribution of
any Director proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to be
appointed as Director with due regard for the diversity of the Board so as
to complement the existing Board.

Nomination Policy

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation to the following in assessing
the suitability of the proposed candidate:

- integrity and ethics;

- commitment in respect of available time;

- relevant interests with the Group or the Group’s members;

- government relations and the ability of public affairs communication;

- compliance with the relevant regulators requirements;

- diversity in all aspects (as described in the Board Diversity Policy);

- any other factors that the Nomination Committee or the Board may
consider relevant and applicable from time to time.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available, the
“gross-vote” method will be used to determine who shall be elected as a
Director. The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had (i) assessed
the current structure, size and composition (including but not limited
to the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (i) reviewed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; (iii) reviewed
and recommended the re-appointment of the retiring Directors for
Shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting; (iv) reviewed the
Board Diversity Policy; (v) reviewed the Directors’ succession plan; and (vi)
reviewed the Nomination Policy.



EE8(#)

ZERBRREES
RENERRZEBCAABIEEZEZLE R
REMam WEBRARBEZTRZ2EAR B2
RRRZBENEIFAUTESRG L Hid
KRERBIFFATEESEETRERMATALE
EFFERLE - ZEMNRRZEENTIZRE R

() BIEAREEEROLZEMEBRERBERMAR

(i) BUMESASENZE2NIRREEEES
=

(i) WEMERAREEEEMZE  AEFRA
S E R 2 MERRBERME A BT -

vy ERAKEZEELENTEABEERENR
ERPI B R Z PR MR RIAAR B - K

v) BRIENOERBENEERRREEZ KGR
VREESRINEEF -

REEFE €2 MRIREZEEGE : (R
FERNETROZERRERIRNR SHIEE 2K
B R(iad w0 K BT N A 2R B hno& SR AR FO &R
WEERMmEEe RSN AE T BRMMEER -

TEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Safety and Environmental Protection Committee

The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee is responsible for
enhancing the safety and environmental protection as well as effectiveness
of production operations that would eliminate the main operating risks of
the Group. The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee is chaired
by Mr. Liu Yang, an executive Director and other members are Mr. Gao
Baoyu, an independent non-executive Director and Mr. Li Yuguo, a director
of Weifang Parasia. The primary duties of the Safety and Environmental
Protection Committee include:

(i) formulating the Group’s overall safety and environmental protection
policy and regulations;

(i) establishing and maintaining a safety and environmental production
operating system of the Group;

(i)  inspecting and monitoring the productions and operations of the
Group to ensure the Group's safety and environmental protection
policies and regulations are implemented effectively;

(iv)  ensuring the production operations of the Group are complied with
all relevant rules and regulations promulgated by relevant regulators
and authorities from time to time; and

(v)  handling and responding to all complaints regarding the safety and
environmental issues and make recommendations to the Board for
improvement.

During the year under review, the Safety and Environmental Protection
Committee had (i) reviewed the effectiveness of safety and environmental
works and/or projects completed during the year under review; (ii)
discussed and identified improvement projects in respect of production
processes to enhance environmental and conservation of energy that will
be proposed to the Board in near future.
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B=g(F) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
REBFE SESHFEESLEH  EFZZ During the year under review, the attendance record of each Director
BeeRRRAFTRg 2R8I EHNT at the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general

meeting is set out below:

HESERE
Attendance of meetings
Z2R
REBE BRZEE
V- Safety and
Annual ENZEE FMZEEE EEZ8E Environmental
general =g Audit  Remuneration Nomination Protection
meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
HTES Executive Directors
BI5EAE 7 M Liu Yang™’ 17N 4/4 13 17 1N 1
ITFI%E Mr. Wang Zijiang 1/1 4/4 - - - -
REERE Mr. Chen Xiaohua 171 4/4 - - - -
FHITES Non-executive Director
PEXEE Mr. Guo Yucheng 1N 4/4 - - - -
(MZZZZF  (resigned on 1 January
—A—HEHE)  2022)
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive
Directors
ZIBEXRE" Mr. Leung Kam Wan"*® 17N 4/4 33 17 1N -
BEIEET®  Mr GaoBaoyu™* 17N 4/4 33 17 - 1N
BIEKHAE® Mr. Liu Chenguang™® - 3/4 33 1N 1N -
EEE Management
TRERAE Mr. Li Yuguo® - - - - - 1N
FisE Notes:
1 BERELECXR 1 Chairman of the Audit Committee
2 EBEREZBEENE 2 Member of the Audit Committee
3 FNEEEER 3 Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
4 FNEEERE 4 Member of the Remuneration Committee
5 RELZECER 5 Chairman of the Nomination Committee
6 REEZEEKE 6 Member of the Nomination Committee
7 ZENIRREEGER 7 Chairman of the Safety and Environmental Protection Committee
8 ZENIRREEGKE 8 Member of the Safety and Environmental Protection Committee
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
to Shareholders and the public pursuant to all types of statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
the applicable accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements for the Group are
published in a timely manner. The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 50 to 54 of this report.

In addition, the Board has reviewed and considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staffs of the accounting and
financial reporting function of the Group and also considered the training
programs and budget during the year under review.

Monthly updates have been provided to the Board timely during the year
under review. Management is also required to provide detailed reports and
explanation to enable the Board to make an informed assessment before
approval of the Group’s financial statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for the Group’s system of internal
control and maintaining a sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard the Group’s assets and the Shareholders’
investment.

The Board is also responsible for the overall risk management functions of
the Group. Risk management procedure has been set up and implemented
for the overall operations of the Group, which is in place to provide a
consistent approach on the risk management processes in identification,
assessment, treatment and reporting of all risks identified that would affect
key business activities.

The internal control and risk management systems of the Group comprise
a comprehensive organisational structure and delegation of authorities,
with responsibilities of each business and operational units clearly defined
and authorities assigned to individuals based on experience and business
needs. Systems have been designed to (i) help the achievement of business
objectives and safeguard assets against unauthorised use and disposition;
(i) ensure compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations, and ensure
proper maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information used within the business or for publication; and (iii) identify,
manage and mitigate key risks to the Group.

The internal control and risk management systems of the Group are
established to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of
failure in achieving the Group's business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

An internal audit department of the Group is established to ensure that
all internal control procedures, compliance controls procedures and risk
management measures and procedures are properly implemented. The
internal audit department of the Group is also formulating more control
measures to put in place and aims to establish more comprehensive
management systems so as to support the continuous business
development of the Group. The internal audit department of the Group
will report to the executive Directors and/or Board directly and periodically
after performing independent reviews and examinations on the risks
associated with and controls over various operations and activities within
the Group and evaluating their adequacy, effectiveness and compliance.

During the year under review, the internal audit department of the Group
performed internal control review and examination on the operation of
project construction team of the subsidiaries of the Company. The findings
have been reported directly to the Board. The general manager of the
Company is responsible for implementing improvement measures on
the recommendations suggested by the internal audit department of the
Group. The improvement progress on these audit recommendations will be
followed up on a regular basis by internal audit department later on.

The Directors will constantly review the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group at least annually to ensure the systems
remain sound and effective on an ongoing basis. During the year under
review, the Directors had reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group and considered that they are
effective and adequate. Besides, the executive Directors participate in the
monthly management meetings of the subsidiaries of the Company to
review the their financial and operational procedures, fraud investigations
(if any), productivity efficiency and effectiveness etc., and/or meetings held
as and when required to address or rectify irregularities immediately.

In addition, pursuant to the employee handbook of the Group, employees
can report any ethical misconduct, impropriety or fraud cases within
the Group to the independent non-executive Directors or the Chairman
anonymously in writing without fear of victimisation, subsequent
discrimination, disadvantage or dismissal.

The Board is responsible for the handling of the dissemination of inside
information and compliance of other financial disclosure requirements.
The Board is fully aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information of the Group should be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable. The Company has developed
an inside information disclosure policy with reference to the Guide on
Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission. Any unauthorised use of confidential or inside information
is strictly prohibited under the inside information disclosure policy of the
Company. The inside information disclosure policy of the Company has
also clearly defined the procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group's affairs and ensure the strict confidentiality of inside
information prior to its disclosure. Employees who are privy or have access
to unpublished inside information of the Group have also been notified
on the adoption of the Model Code by the Company and on observing
the restrictions pursuant to Parts Xlll and XIV of the SFO. The Board will
review the inside information disclosure policy regularly to make revisions
or amendments thereto, if necessary.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code governing
securities transactions of the Directors. Each of the Directors has confirmed,
upon specific enquiry, his compliance with the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021. The Company has also adopted
written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for
the relevant employees. The Senior Management, who, because of their
office in the Group, is likely to be in possession of inside information, has
been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model Code and the
Company'’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.
No incidents of non-compliance of the employees’ written guidelines by
the relevant employees were noted by the Company during the year under
review.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Right to convene extraordinary general meeting (the
MEGMH)

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionist(s).

If the request has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders making
the request will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will
not be convened as requested.

If within twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
must be in writing with contact information of the Shareholders and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move resolutions at
the general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election as a
Director under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (as amended from time
to time) or the Articles of Association. However, Shareholders may suggest
proposals by sending written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary following the procedures set out in the paragraph headed “Right
to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting” above to convene an EGM for
any business specified in such written requisition.

Right to propose a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice signed by a member of the Company (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his willingness to be elected including that person’s biographical details
as required by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, shall have been lodged
at the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if
the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
(7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers its annual general meeting as an important
channel for face-to-face dialogue with Shareholders. Either the Chairman
or the chairman of the Audit Committee would attend the annual general
meeting of the Company answering and explaining to Shareholders the
issues relating to the Group’s business strategies and financial results and
proposed resolutions at the general meeting. At the commencement of the
meeting, the chairman of the meeting will explain the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and then answers any questions from Shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its Shareholder through
announcements, annual and interim reports. All such reports and
announcements can also be accessed via the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange. The Chairman and the investor relations
manager are the key spokespersons of the Company in all external
media communications and respond to inquiries from Shareholders and
investment community.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The annual fees payable to the independent auditor of the Company for
non-audit services and for audit services are subject to scrutiny by the Audit
Committee. The provision of non-audit services by the independent auditor
of the Company requires prior approval of Audit Committee so as to
ensure that the independence and objectivity of the independent auditor
of the Company will not be impaired. Details of the fees paid or payable to
the independent auditor of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 are as follows:

Audit services HK$980,000
Non-audit services
Review of interim financial statements HK$100,000

On behalf of the Board
Liu Yang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tiande
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 140, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.



FAREtSEE(E)
B 5 BURE BV R B RENE

RE Ih HR s A A B TS R AR BT RE3 7)) B (o)A K B E
AFTE BEEEARESREERLEERERE
MEREHER R -

REZBVHHRELEAFESE R TA] - EHE
Wik B R MR BB E R IR BEHEEER
((EHEEER] B hst - EZRUIR M ERK
SrRnBEBRNZENEEEETE  mES
FEEBERERBHFRAMBAEENSHE
FRH)EE - B 5 R WK I R M R 1R 0 R B T 4 B
THEE RRARFRERTEENHE - Fh
e EREEEELE ERENRITES
- HEELE HMREENEIBRERRERE
BEREDT WARBEFSARFENEERR
MEERBIEH AR

R_E-_—F+_A=+—H AEENEFRE
W AR & e W R ) BR TEFE A A R #512,690,000
TC (KI5E18) » WE MZEE R IRBEREAR
#51,500,0007T (B FE37(ii)Q) °

B4 5 U T R O (S R
REHEE RARNGANBRETHEER
AR b XA B IR B R R R E R EAS
#11 «

ELEHEE :
BB E 5 EKE X R E R E T
e B2 F e 4E

- EREEEGFHRENITE:

- BBTH BEKEMREANTE FEES
USRI U RENRHEREERNE

—  RERORXXM - AT AR E 2R KR
KEBFIERERER DT

- EHEEHCEEEREATEAREHSE
BEMZER  BEROX  FBRALERR
MATHEEERN AN - &

- RERBEEEBREAPERNEABIERN
MR -

BB AR S
Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivable

Refer to note 37(iii)(c) and (d), and the Group's critical accounting estimates
and judgements in relation to impairment of trade and bills receivable set
out in note 4(ix) to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivable is estimated based
on an expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) model under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Loss allowances for trade and bills receivable are measured
with ECLs which result from all possible default events over the expected
life. Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivable is a subjective area
as management requires application of judgement. Judgement is applied
in considering the credit history including default or delay in payments,
settlement records, subsequent settlements and ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivable, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount of the Group’s trade
and bills receivable was RMB512,690,000 (note 18). Allowance for
impairment amounting to RMB1,500,000 (note 37(iii)(c)) had been made
over these balances.

We have identified impairment assessment of trade and bills receivable
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and considerable amount of judgement being required
in conducting impairment assessment prepared by management as
mentioned in the foregoing paragraph.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
of trade and bills receivable included:

- Obtaining an understanding of how impairment is estimated by
management;

- Assessing the measurement of ECLs of trade and bills receivable
by obtaining the understanding of approach being adopted by the
Group;

- Testing the ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable, on a sample
basis, to the source documents;

- Reviewing the reasonableness of the use of ageing profile, historical
settlement pattern, historical default rates, forecast economic

conditions and forward-looking information in the ECLs model; and

- Checking the accuracy and the relevance of the input data used in
the ECLs model.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 53



B ZBERE

Independent Auditor’s Report

BB E RS M B RRAENEE

(&)

o FERANBRENEEZRSA  BHER
B (BEREER)  UREAHBHRER
B S REMBERSMEE -

e Bt EREARBEBHAXTEINMBENE
BFERLEENETRE  AEHERSUE
BREXRER -BFREEEENIME
EENMHT - BFNAFABRAEZRE
fFo

BEEHEEZZB N (HF 1) ErtastEI8E
REZHERERBRTRRETER RFEHRE
EESERHEIET BN ERINEEEEARK

EENTRMEZZESELBHR BEEFCETA
BB MEERERER W ERFEF AT EEHK
EERARGTEESHUMNMARERREMSE
H UREERBRTREREREMRRNITE
S EE e (WER) £1TAR -

HREFFHEBNERT  BEETHAHRE
REVMBHRRNEFTEREENFTE  MiFH
FARBEREAFTR BEFERREMRE P M
ZEFRE BRIFERIERTAFAFAREZS
FH REBBRFELNBERLT  TAEREHRES
EHRETHARFTRERNEAARREBHLES
M RFRHEE - RIEFSRE MERE T EMZFIR

BRI EEEZEMERERAE
HEDL AN

B

HEE Z9I5P05018

EA T _F#=A=-+hH

54 RBUIZERERAT —Z=—FFR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P0O5018

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement
HE_ZT-—F+=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—E-—F —ETTHF
2021 2020
B AR¥T T ARETF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
= Revenue 6 2,584,731 1,359,393
HEMKA Cost of sales (1,806,861) (1,178,259)
EX Gross profit 777,870 181,134
N Other income and gains 6 8,439 92,594
TEYEEHEE Revaluation losses on investment properties 14 (1,300) (1,000)
HERX Selling expenses (85,076) (51,490)
THEEMEBERT Administrative and other operating expenses (157,227) (98,712)
B Finance costs 7 (6,450) (11,407)
FREFS B AR R Profit before income tax 8 536,256 111,119
BT 1S At e 2 Income tax expense 9 (143,806) (33,138)
FERA Profit for the year 392,450 77,981
EGFEERR (BE) Profit/(Loss) for the year
attributable to:
ZN/NEIE Z SN Owners of the Company 379,647 94,821
FE 12 il b Non-controlling interests 12,803 (16,840)
392,450 77,981
BETE AN ARHES AL Earnings per share for
FERAME 2 profit attributable to owners
KRBT of the Company for the year
—EARREE — Basic and diluted 12 ARM0.446t ARK0.1117T
RMBO0.446 RMBO.111
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_ZT-—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—E-—-F ZEZFF
2021 2020
ARBT T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
F B A Profit for the year 392,450 77,981
Hh 2wk Other comprehensive income
HETREFIBZR Items that may be reclassified subsequently
mk ZHEE : to the income statement:
REBINEBE BT Exchange gains on translation of financial
R statements of foreign operations 98 1,075
FEHMEZERE Other comprehensive income for the year 98 1,075
FEXHRSAE Total comprehensive income for the year 392,548 79,056
EhEE2EKE Total comprehensive income for the year
WEE attributable to:
ZIN/NEIE SN Owners of the Company 379,588 95,552
FE 17 | f Non-controlling interests 12,960 (16,496)
392,548 79,056
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZE=-—F+=H=+—H As at 31 December 2021

—E-—F —ETTHF
2021 2020
B 5 AREF T AREEFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EEHEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
e =N Property, plant and equipment 13 1,085,192 1,044,002
FEHEEE Right-of-use assets 34 62,382 64,219
LB Investment properties 14 21,600 22,900
EEE Intangible asset 15 10,371 12,175
BEYE BEXR Deposits paid for acquisition of
wEZENET® property, plant and equipment 54,893 30,184
FEIETHIBE = Deferred tax assets 16 7,888 14,894
1,242,326 1,188,374
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 17 213,273 110,782
B 5 AR & e 1% Trade and bills receivable 18 512,690 251,233
FEM BN EMEUTIE  Prepayments and other receivables 19 122,090 243,193
BERAIRITER Pledged bank deposits 20 3 7
R1T MRS Kk Bank and cash balances 21 226,349 125,314
1,074,405 730,529
RBAE Current liabilities
B SR Trade payables 22 47,378 39,036
FEAI AR BRI Accruals and other payables
H fth FE T IR 23 221,607 231,427
AERAEE Contract liabilities 24 21,427 14,453
RITEK Bank borrowings 25 60,000 110,000
JEHEE P PR R AR Advances from a non-controlling shareholder 26 5,175 5,334
5 ST NS E Advances from ultimate holding company 27 94,760 105,507
MEHEAE Current tax liabilities 93,186 10,521
543,533 516,278
mEEEFEE Net current assets 530,872 214,251
BEERABES Total assets less current liabilities 1,773,198 1,402,625
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZTE=-—F+=A=-+—H As at 31 December 2021

—E-—-F ZEZFF
2021 2020
B 5 AREF T AREEFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
FIEFIB & & Deferred tax liabilities 16 18,388 19,733
EEFE Net assets 1,754,810 1,382,892
R EQUITY
&7 Share capital 28 7,831 7,831
& Reserves 29 1,739,227 1,380,269
ARAEEEAELER Equity attributable to
the Company’s owners 1,747,058 1,388,100
JEE RS Non-controlling interests 7,752 (5,208)
BEER Total equity 1,754,810 1,382,892

ES5E1A0EMEREMBEHRERENZZ=_F=H The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 140 were approved
“+RAEARBEESSHEWRMERE - WA and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 25

NI REZEE March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:
2% EFFI
LIU YANG WANG ZUIANG
EE EFE
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEZZT=——F+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—E-—F —ZEZFF
2021 2020
Bt &E ARBT T ARBTTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
REEBEECZHEME  Cash flows from operating activities
B P45 354 B4 A Profit before income tax 536,256 111,119
B TR IEERE - Adjustments for:
fRiEEE RN N2 Equity-settled share-based payment

RIEFM X expenses 8 793 =
ERITF BULA Bank interest income 6 (743) (1,023)
B Interest expenses 7 6,450 11,407
AR ERH Amortisation of right-of-use assets 8 1,837 2,142
B A EEE Amortisation of an intangible asset 8 1,804 1,804
e Depreciation 8 121,723 112,068
7% FE LA B 4 Release of deferred income 6 - (7,775)
OB = AT 23R F(E 2 Reversal of write-down of inventories

FEB#E  F58 to net realisable value, net 8 (124) (2,277)
VI~ S MR 2 Wiite-off of property, plant and equipment 8/13 18,980 =
"EYEEHEE Revaluation losses on investment properties 14 1,300 1,000
g [38] + b U %5 Gain on resumption of land 6(3ii) - (66,710)
B S W R R E &S Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment losses

Bt (m#) on trade receivables 8 522 (1,971)
H th & W AR RL (B B 15 Provision for impairment loss on other

] receivables 8 1,980 -
E A e KGR IE 2 3 8H Write-off of other receivables 8 12 =
HEWE  WMEKEEZ  Loss/(Gain) on disposals of property, plant and

BB (W) - 38 equipment, net 8/6 128 (6,246)
EEESEHA Operating profit before working capital

LR changes 690,918 153,538
FEIE N Increase in inventories (102,367) (6,099)
B o RUER - EEE (Increase)/decrease in trade, bills and other

B e R IE R TR receivables and prepayments

FRIE (3 ) R (268,790) 36,863
B ZEMIR - EMENFIE  Increase in trade payables, other payables

R ERT AT BRFIE AN and accruals 3,076 5,707
SREEEM GRL) Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 6,974 (1,350)
REEBMFES Cash generated from operations 329,811 188,659
B TS ft Income taxes paid (55,480) (18,127)
iR EL 2 FEE  Net cash generated from operating activities 274,331 170,532
REXEELE2EHELRE  Cash flows from investing activities
U (5] £ 3 ) 2 Us 9 Compensation received from government for

BT #7418 the resumption of land 125,915 20,000
BEYZE  BEREE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (213,472) (215,853)
BEFREEE Purchases of right-of-use assets 34 - (1,113)
HEME - HE R Proceeds on disposals of property,

R FRBRIA plant and equipment 2,420 8,446
EHEARITFEROR D Decrease in pledged bank deposits 4 6,895
B U FI 2 Interest received 743 1,023
REZLFEAHZ S F88  Net cash used in investing activities (84,390) (180,602)
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MERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE—_ZFT=-——F+=A=+—HI1LFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—B-—F —ETF
2021 2020
B ARBT T ARBTTT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BMEXBEELE2HLRE  Cash flows from financing activities
BRI E Dividend paid 11 (21,423) =
EAFE Interest paid 36 (5,360) (9,439)
BERIEITER Repayments of bank borrowings 36 (110,000) (170,000)
FTIERITIER New bank borrowings raised 36 60,000 110,000
5 ¢ ST /NI E B Advances from ultimate holding company
- AeHH — principal amount portion 36 1,676 40,000
A B AT IR A BE K Repayment to ultimate holding company
- ReHH — principal amount portion 36 (13,662) -
B EEFNEH B2/ F88  Net cash used in financing activities (88,769) (29,439)
RekB\EEMEEE Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
g, CRd) F88 equivalents 101,172 (39,509)
FY7RENIRELEEEE  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 125,314 164,505
INEPE R EH) v o B Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (137) 318
FuR 2R RIASFMBEIAB Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 226,349 125,314
ReRHEELZEEER Analysis of balances of
HEER D AT cash and cash equivalents
R1T NI ® 5 Bank and cash balances 21 226,349 125,314
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mEEREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE—ZFT=——F+=A=+—HI1EF/E For the year ended 31 December 2021

AAAREEARS
Attributable to owners of the Company

HBER
EEL i

BHO RS 13 Mg Foreign BRERE FEHER
RA  ROEE HBIEE  Suplus  Property Public  currency Share  EftifE REER Non-
Share Share Special reserve  revaluation welfare  translation option Other  Retained &3t controlling Y 3
capital  premium reserve fund reserve fund reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total equity
ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETZ ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARETH AR¥TR ARETR ARETZ ARETx
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(H&E29(a))  (RE&E29(b)  (HFRE29(c)) (Wi&E2o(d) (W&29(e)) (RP=E29(f)) (R¥&E29(q)
(note 29(a) (note 29(b))  (note 29(c)) (note 29(d)) (note 29(¢)) (note 29(f) (note 29(g))
R=B=-% Balance at 1 January 2021
-A-Rtt 7831 114,822 31,182 68,338 1,653 633 (4,190) 4,290 490,931 672,610 1,388,100 (5208) 1,382,892
RELENRGA  Equity-settled share-based
LHERR payment expenses (note 30)
(Hf3£30) - - - - - - - 793 - - 793 - 793
IH=F=FF 2020 final dvidend paid
REMRS (e (note 11) - - - - - - - - - @B ) - (14y)
SRURERRR#E (HI330) Forfeit of share options
(note 30) - - - - - - - (195) - 195 - - -
HEFARS Transactions with owners - - - - - - - 508 - (21228 (20,630 - (20,630)
EEEA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - o I9ET 39647 12803 392450
B2 E ks Other comprehensive income
BEBINEE Exchange (loss)/gain on
BflRE L translation of financial
B (B18) /W& statements of foreign
operations - - - - - - (59) - - - (59) 157 %
FE2EARZEE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - (59) - - 379,647 379,588 12,960 392,548
AREZTERE  Appropriation to statutory
reserve - - - 46,426 - - - - - (46,426) - - -
RZBz-F Balance at 31 December 2021
tZA=+-A
73 7831 114,822 31,182 114,764 1,653 633 (4,249) 4,888 490,931 984,603 1,747,058 7752 1,754,810
Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 61



RERBEHR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE—_ZFT=-——F+=A=+—HI1LFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

AARMEE B
Attributable to owners of the Company
SVBER
A Gl
9N 51 DES Foreign  EERRIEREfR FiatlER
BE  ROEE  FRIEE Suplus ~ Property Public  currency Shre  EfnRE  RERA Non-
Share Share Special reserve  revaluation welfare  translation option Other  Retained A& controling EiEn
capital ~ premium reserve fund reserve fund reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests  Total equity

ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
(RitzF20@)  (PzF29b)  (P&E29(0) (Marg)  (Maaoe)  (Patao)  (ieEo(g)
(note 29(@)  (note 29(b))  (note 29(c)) (note 29(d)  (note 29(e)  (note 29(f)  (note 29(q))

- 3:3 Balance at 1 January 2020

-fA-Rtt 7831 114,822 31,182 68,338 1,653 633 (4,921) 4,706 279,661 788643 1,292,548 11,288 1,303,836
SRURBB 8 (HF3£30)  Forfeit of share options (note 30) - - - - - - = (416) = 416 = = =
GEEG (M) Transfer of reserve (note) - - - - - - - - M0 1.0 - - -
BREARS Transactions with owners - - - - - - - (#16) 211,10 (210854) - - -
EERR/(FB)  Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - - - - - - - ua %R (16840)  779%1
Ht2EE Other comprehensive income
BEBIEE Exchange gain on translation of

ipyx e finandial statements of foreign

i3 operations - - - - - - 731 - - - 731 344 1,075

EER2ENELE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - 731 - - 94,821 95,552 (16,496) 79,056

- 3:3 Balance at 31 December 2020

+zpzt-8

3] 7831 114,822 31,182 68,338 1,653 633 (4,190) 4290 490,931 672,610 1,388,100 (5208) 1,382,892
B 5 Note:
REZTZTF  —RPRPEAREME ((FEH)RIZAE  One wholly-owned subsidiary established in the People’s Republic of China (the
2EWNBRARBBRBEMESMELIEMEFMEAR - “PRC”) capitalised its retained profits to increase its registered capital in 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

—E-—F+=F=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

There were no significant changes in the Group’s operations during
the year. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 32.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the ultimate
holding company of the Group to be Cheerhill Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) because the main operations of the Group are
located in the PRC. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 55 to 140 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(@) New or amended standards adopted by the
Group

In the current year, the Group has applied or early adopted
for the first time, the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations (“new or amended HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective for the Group's
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2021.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(@) New or amended standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 16 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019
and relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in which
an entity will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest rate to
reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge
accounting in which an entity will not have to discontinue its
hedge accounting solely because it makes changes required
by the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting
criteria; and (c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from the Reform
and how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates. The application of the amendments in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

In the prior year, the Group early adopted COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions (Amendment to HKFRS 16) that provided
practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing
a practical expedient to HKFRS 16. This practical expedient was
available to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affected payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021.

In March 2021, the Board issued COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to HKFRS 16)
that extends the practical expedient to apply to reduction in
lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
impact on the Group's financial statements since there is no
rent concessions granted by the lessors even though the early
application of this amendments.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group'’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group's current intention is to apply these changes on the
date they become effective.

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as Current or
HKAS 1 Non-current and HK Interpretation
5 (2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause?
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Estimates”
HKAS 8
Amendments to Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
HKAS 12 Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’
Amendments to Property, plant and equipment —
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use'
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
HKAS 37 Contract'
Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework'

HKFRSs 2018-2020  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020)
- Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification
is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain
that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with
at the end of the reporting period. The amendments also
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that
settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash,
equity instruments, other assets or services.

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence
of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Interpretation 5 (2020) updates the wordings in
the interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS 1
with no change in conclusion and do not change the existing
requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
— Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in HKAS 1 with
regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments
replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’
with ‘material accounting policy information’. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in HKAS 1 are also amended
to clarify that accounting policy information that relates to
immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial
and need not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may
be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material.
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(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 - Disclosure of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments replace the definition of a change in
accounting estimates with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was
deleted. However, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates was retained following clarifications:

o A change in accounting estimate that results from new
information or new developments is not the correction
of an error.

o The effects of a change in an input or a measurement
technique used to develop an accounting estimate are
changes in accounting estimates if they do not result
from the correction of prior period errors.

Two examples (example 4-5) were added to the guidance
on implementing HKAS 8, which accompanies this standard
and one example (example 3) was deleted as it could cause
confusion in light of the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial
recognition exemption. Under the amendments, an entity does
not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences may arise on initial
recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit. For example, this may arise upon recognition of
a lease liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset under
HKFRS 16 at the commencement date of a lease. Following the
amendments to HKAS 12, an entity is required to recognise
the related deferred tax asset and liability, with the recognition
of any deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability
criteria in HKAS 12. An illustrative example was also added to
HKAS 12 that explains how the amendments are applied.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Continued)

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In
addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
an entity recognises a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred
tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences,
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
(or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from
selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively, but only to
items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
The entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

Amendments to HKAS 37 - Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The amendments shall be applied to contracts for which the
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Comparatives are not restated. Instead,
the entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as
appropriate, at the date of initial application.
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(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
instead of the version issued in 2010. The amendments add
to HKFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists
as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event
that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an explicit
statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combination.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including:

o HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments, which clarify the
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph
B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise
a financial liability, explaining that only fees paid or
received between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other’s behalf are included. The amendment shall be
applied prospectively to modifications and exchanges
that occur on or after the date the entity first applies the
amendment.

. HKFRS 16 — Leases, which amend lllustrative Example
13 to remove the illustration of reimbursement of
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve
any potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives that might arise because of how lease
incentives are illustrated in that example.

The directors of the Company have performed an assessment
on the above amendments to standards and interpretations
and have concluded on a preliminary basis that these
amendments would not have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in subsequent years.

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 69



B RS AR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT-—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. FEEMBRME 3.

muse

PR T R 2 B BR
RIOT - BB ERAEN  ZBERE
WIR 2 MR B 1 — BUER - R
57T AT 1S 5T B8 B 5 1R S5 A 2 3
REEE SRR PE(NE) E
R -

(a)

A 75 3R 5% T R Sh A AR MR L - 1A
NN LL PA S L EI Y ATES T
oho SHREMN T X2 BEHEET 2
A -

BHEIE MUEMBBRSESERE
AR B - BEZFHEIER
EREURBEEHRTHMEEZ —
DEM MR EEHEEL  HEERE
RERLGEHINZEMLT - FRF
2 H B RS R AE R 2 B R R
EAHMBRRIBER 2 &E - T)
P T4 EE -

(b) WEEEREBSH

GANBREBIEARTRANEL
AENESF+-A=+—AALZ
BB -

B AR RENEEALEEE B
MAERKRE A WA EEH B HE
THEAaNKRER -

SEAEKERRZENKS R5
B 45 R B R B3R W e K S TR PG I AR Y
REMBRREYHHE SERNFEE
HEMNARBREBEBRNEE KA BT -
MAREENSRARE 2 ARETT
TR AELRI 5, o PR B 2 B B 75 S R I BT e
EZEHOR BT EREAE  UE
REAEERAN 2 GAEREB— -

REBERBAETHNEERTS XK
EH - AZHECEBREAEER
HERAWEEBEBEHAR
BEBETIPNEEST A BEK
B AEBSTEMBANEHEEE
MEHERELBE—BIRANES
HiERE ARFEANEBEEMNG
BRABRENELAE -

70 RECTERERAT —Z-—FFH

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new
or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost
convention except for investment properties and bills receivable
which are stated at fair values. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed
on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group's perspective. Amounts reported
in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities and
assets meets the definition of a business and control is
transferred to the Group. In determining whether a particular
set of activities and assets is a business, the Group assesses
whether the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at a
minimum, an input and substantive processes and whether the
acquired set has the ability to produce outputs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation and business

(0

combination (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able to
exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss
unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal
group. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(e)

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined and are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into RMB at the closing rates at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
foreign currency translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress (“CIP"”)) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to the working condition and location for
its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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3. FESHHEMEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() M¥- -WERRKEE) (e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided to
write off the cost less their estimated residual values, if any,
over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.5% — 5% or the lease term,
whichever is shorter
20% or the lease term,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 6% — 10%
Motor vehicles 18% — 19%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 18% — 30%

CIP represents leasehold buildings and plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct cost of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction is transferred to the appropriate class of property,
plant and equipment when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of CIP
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation method and
estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each reporting date.

In 2020, the estimated useful lives of certain buildings and
plant and machinery were revised to best reflect the useful
lives of these property, plant and equipment, while their
relevant residual values were increased to the amounts exceed
their net carrying amounts after reassessment. The change in
accounting estimate resulted in decrease in depreciation charge
of RMB19,937,000 in 2020.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for
a currently undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, it is stated at fair value, unless it is still in the
course of construction or development at the reporting date
and its fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Fair value is determined by an independent valuation firm, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the location and
the nature of the investment property. The carrying amounts
recognised at the reporting date reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in fair value or the
sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Research and development activities

Cost associated with research activities are expensed in profit
or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to
development activities are capitalised provided they meet the
following recognition requirement:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the product and use or sell
it;

(i) the Group’s ability to use or sell the product is
demonstrated;

the product will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sale;

sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the product can be
reliably measured.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9

(h)

Research and development activities
(Continued)

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of development of internally generated
software, products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are capitalised. Capitalised development
costs are amortised over the periods the Group expects to
benefit from selling the products developed. Amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Financial instruments
(a)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. These are subsequently measured
using effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
These are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using effective interest rate method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on trade
receivables, financial assets measured at amortised
cost and debt instruments measured at FVOCI. ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased if it is more than 180 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be default when:
(1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); and (2)
the financial asset is more than 365 days past due. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
The Group has rebutted the presumption when the credit
risk on financial assets will increase if more than 30 days
past due and other financial assets are credit-impaired
if more than 90 days past due, based on the historical
record of the Group.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non-credit impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, accruals, other payables, bank borrowings,
advances from a non-controlling shareholder and advances
from ultimate holding company are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
Or expires.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2T —F+— A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

()

(k)

Intangible asset

Intangible asset acquired separately is initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible asset acquired in a business
combination is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangible asset with finite useful lives is carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation is charged in administrative and other
operating expenses in profit or loss and is provided as follows:

—  Technical knowhow is amortised on straight-line method
from the date of acquisition over the estimated useful
life of 10 years.

Both estimated useful life and method of amortisation are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses. Cost is determined
using weighted average basis, and in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Leasing

Accounting as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain office premises
and certain land, irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases. The Group applied a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, to capitalise the leases in
the consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for lease contracts with a
lease term of 12 months or less or ends within 12 months
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option (“short-term leases”).

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement
date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation or amortisation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the leased assets at the end of the
lease terms, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated
or amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful lives and the lease terms. Right-of-use assets
are subject to impairment. For right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property, it is carried at fair value.

In 2020, the estimated useful lives of certain right-of-use assets
were revised, while their relevant residual values were increased
to the amounts exceed their net carrying amounts after
reassessment. The change in accounting estimate in 2020 did
not has material impact on the Group's financial statements.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the leases, the Group
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease terms. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease terms reflect
the Group exercising the option to terminate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group has applied the short-term leases recognition
exemption to leases. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a
number of tenants. They are leased out under operating leases,
which are measured and presented according to the nature
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on straight-line method over the periods covered
by the lease terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are earned.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired
in a business combination. They are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequently measured
at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in a
comparable provision as described above and the amount
initially recognised less any accumulated amortisation, if
appropriate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefits) to the extent that they are incremental cost directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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2T —F+— A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

(i) Chemical products

Customers obtain control of the chemical products when
the goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the chemical products. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 180 days.

The Group's contracts with customers from the sale
of chemical products provides customers a right of
return either to exchange the same product or to be
refund in cash. The right of return gives rise to variable
consideration. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until the associated
uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application of
the constraint on variable consideration increases the
amount of revenue that will be deferred. In addition,
a refund liability and a right to recover returned goods
assets are recognised. The Group's obligation to replace
faulty products is recognised as a provision (details in
note 3(m)).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(@)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(ii) Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on time-proportion basis
using effective interest method.

(iii)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to deliver
goods or transfer services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Grants
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants are
intended to compensate, whilst those relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are included as deferred
income liability in the statement of financial position and are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income and gains” in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible asset and interests in subsidiaries
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Impairment of assets (other than financial

(r)

assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash-generating unit
("CGU"), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the “Central
Pension Scheme”).

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligations under these plans are limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation
plans to certain employees and a supplier. All employee
services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date and
excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the equity instruments granted vest immediately unless
the compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with a
corresponding increase in the share option reserve in equity.
If vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to vest.

Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication
that the number of equity instruments expected to vest differs
from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. After vesting date, when the vested share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

For shares transferred to an employee of the Company by the
Company'’s ultimate holding company, the fair value of services
received is determined by reference to the fair value of shares
granted at the grant date, and is expensed on straight-line
method over the vesting period with a corresponding increase
in equity. At each reporting date, for shares granted to an
employee with non-market performance vesting conditions,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2T —F+— A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised, as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset, during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are being undertaken. A qualifying asset is an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when they are
incurred.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are completed.

Accounting for income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward as well as
other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property carried at fair value under HKAS
40 "Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted,
the deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of these investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale.
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3. FEEMBRMEE) 3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Accounting for income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income tax are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and
(b) it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

(if)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the chief operating decision makers (i.e. executive
Directors) (the “CODM") for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for their
review of the performance of the components.
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3. FEETBRBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) DEHE (E) (u) Segment reporting (Continued)
BB B EERFE155% [ RE EE The business components of the Group are assessed, which
PEIMaR HZHQ:&&JZ%PW e within the scope of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
R SETS AR EB D B TS - A E Customers, the research and development, manufacture and
TRARE TEme i - £EMHER sale of fine chemical products of the Group are identified as
ERE —REDER KB —KE D EB a single operating segment. The single operating segment is
E’]%fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁm BRI E R reported in a manner consistent with the internal financial
L NEPATEE R —F information reporting provided to the CODM.

(v) EAEEA (v) Related parties
@) T_L/\:t_JZuZLL}\j:Z%ﬁ%}EfE (@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

Bk B BN &R B 5 R - ATIR = 4 related to the Group if that person:

AT

() AT EERIAER (i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) ﬂzli% BEEATES (i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) 557}‘3% E%N/NEIRS /NG| (i) is a member of key management personnel of the
ZEEBEBAB Group or the Company's parent.

() WTNIEMGHER  —EER (b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

BV R 7N £ (B 75 B conditions apply:

() EBEEMASEHER —£H (i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
w8 (BEAIEREE AR same group (which means that each parent,
B A E kR RHEA A subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
HEH @) - others).

(ii) 71?5%%%,71%%%% (i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
Mg ENE EAA (R other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
H—EEBHRAEEEET member of a group of which the other entity is a
KERELEARHEER member).
al) e

(iii) W1§§%ﬁ%ﬁ*%£ﬁ (i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
WEE A - party.

vy —fEEBEE=7EEN (iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
BEOQR M»_—HES the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
REZB-FTEBIEER
=

v EBEAAKENALE (v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
7R B2 1 & B 1R A M the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
BB e ATl - entity related to the Group.

V) EEAQQEMATALE (vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
1 % R4 ) o person identified in (a).

(vii) LY(a)(i)Eﬁﬁ?@E/\\iiﬁ% (vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
BHEAXENAREAE over the entity or is a member of key management
B EZEBNEAR)H personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
FTEEBAEB - entity).

(vii) E[ BB Bk H P B AR B 2 AE (vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
P RZAS B RSEE 2 it is a part, provides key management personnel
%L\%\ ARHFZEEEAE services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

AR ©
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1 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

U]

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii)

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii)

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(i) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation/amortisation charges for the Group's property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation/amoritsation charge where useful lives are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

(ii) Estimated fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent valuation firm to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the
fair values, the valuers have used a method of valuation which
involves input of certain estimates. The Directors have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation
is reflective of the current market conditions.
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4. EEETHEFTRAE 2) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
EZSTHEAREBR(E) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(i) FEM&EE (iii) Inventories valuation
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Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expense. These estimates are based on
the current market conditions and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customers’ taste
and competitors’ actions in response to serve industry cycles.
The Group will reassess the estimates by each reporting date.

The assessment of the estimated net realisable value involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimates, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-down/
reversal of write-down in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

(iv) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate
of the recoverable amount of the asset. This requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the CGUs to which the asset
is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. A
change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

(v) Estimated useful life of intangible asset
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
life for its intangible asset. The estimated useful live reflects
the Group’s management’s estimates of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use
of the intangible asset.

(vi) Income taxes and deferred taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes and the timing of payment of the
related taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. When the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax provision in the period
in which such determination is made.
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4. EEGEHEFRAE(E) 4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

EES AT RREBR(E)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(vii) REZIRAAELNFEARER

ARERERERIEBBRARERE
B 2K B PR E AR 2S5 IKET
RTEEBE - THBURR $K B 6 A
tEZ #IE - M AN EER AT EK B A
AR -ZZENF— A —BRERRZE
MBBHAETERAITE RS RDIK
A NS B BTRIEN © Ut 7 B 2 RIER
BB B FBHNME6 -

(viii) AR{EFTE
IR ARERBHRRTNETEER
BRARBEFER/SREARE -

AEENEMMFEREENDAE
BUERENSABRBABERTA
BERB A NEBMBBAE -EEERQA
B ERERNBAED STRKR -
A B &R Bl T3 B (R E BT (£
M AENRBREEME

F—AB: HREREERTESTH
WECRERE)

F_FR . REB-RRIBAEAID
AERERSERBAE:

F=H/A . AABERBAEBILFE
EMEBEESE) -

HEBE LR Ao R T ERFT A
B B (K AR Bl 8 A B E - skt A B
HZIEEN AR BT EEKERTE -
HEETRRA Z EEBEEED
HARAFERR ©

REBEDRIRARBEFABREIEA
AREFAEMEEKEN S AGTER
BEYMENERERE -BEALFIERR
AREFENFHEER  F28M=E
14 % HI5E18 o

92 RECTERERAT —Z-—FFH

(vii) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of

dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
the subsidiaries in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividends, where the Group considers that
if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC
earned after 1 January 2008 will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes are provided.
Details of the unrecognised deferred tax liabilities in this respect
are set out in note 16.

(viii) Fair value measurement

Certain assets included in the Group’s financial statements
require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial and
non-financial assets based on market observable inputs or
unobservable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used
in determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures investment properties and bills receivable
at FVTPL and FVOCI respectively. For more detailed information
in relation to the fair value measurement of these items, please
refer to note 14 and note 18.
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JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(ix) Impairment of trade and bills receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For bills receivable, measurement
of ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade and bills receivable is disclosed
in note 37(iii)(c) and (d) to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The CODM has identified that the research and development,
manufacture and sale of fine chemical products of the Group
operates as single operating segment. The single operating segment
is reported as further described in note 3(u). No other discrete
financial information is provided other than the Group’s result
and financial position as a whole. Accordingly, only entity-wide
disclosures, major customers and geographic information are
presented.

Revenue for sale of fine chemical products is recognised at point in
time as when there is evidence that the control of goods has been
transferred to the customer, the customer has adequate control over
the goods and the Group has no unfulfilled obligations that affect
customer accepting the goods.
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5. AHERE) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
REEREINAREBRE 2o fHEEREE D BIA The Group’s disaggregated revenue from external customers are
bl divided into the following geographical areas:

—EB-—F —E-TF

2021 2020

AR®F AR®ETTT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

MR (i) The PRC (domicile) 1,956,610 1,046,813
ENfE India 232,642 114,814
EH United States of America 93,484 47,582
= Taiwan 43,002 18,244
< United Kingdom 32,771 14,667
Hi Others 226,222 117,273
2,584,731 1,359,393

BERZHEE D AR mXERSEE - i
RABDERBEEERUNTE - WES

HinwEE D 2 IR EE -

TEEFEFER

B SN 4 R 0% A LS

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods are delivered. No geographical location of
non-current assets is presented as the substantial non-current assets

are physically based in the PRC.

Information about major customer

Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 10% or more

LN of the Group's total revenue during the year is as follows:
—E-—fF —E_TF
2021 2020
ARMT T AR®ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BFEA Customer A 353,483 !

# DRARE B AR AH10% °

94 AREBETERERAR
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# less than 10% of the Group's total revenue.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 32. Revenue
from the Group’s principal activities and other income and gains
recognised are as follows:

—E-—F —EEF
2021 2020
AR®T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REHEEFHFIT AR ZE %% Revenue from contracts with customers

SHE B TEmMR Sale of fine chemical products 2,584,731 1,359,393

L4t g A F Uk 2= Other income and gains
BT 48 B (BT EEG)) Government grants (note (i)) 6,301 9,081
U [E] + 3h U %5 (B 5(Gi)) Gain on resumption of land (note (ii)) - 66,710
|ITHFE WA Bank interest income 743 1,023
I FE W A B 18 (BT R GT)) Release of deferred income (note (iii)) - 7,775
HEWE  BEMEME 2UE  Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment - 6,246
REMEHRS WA Rental income from investment properties 676 635
HETE UL A Sundry income 719 1,124
8,439 92,594

BifeE Notes:

(i) BE-—_Z-—S+-A=+—HILEE -
BT R B BL4E ¢ (a) A R 12,500,0007T (= F
—Z4E ) e B R R R R R A
ARARIERENMBARINAEEREERE
R RORFTETRBEMAZISE
M - R B T BT SR P S M AR EE
AR #2,325,1007C (20204 : ) AR S #
AAREFEOHBARINEREE -

BE-_Z-_ZE+-_A=+—HILEE "
B EERE

A & #2,500,0007T £ B th 75 AT
ERYUBMMAE AN EERENR
BENERERZE[REARDREFR
BAHYF B A 718075 2 HE R A0 228

(@)

REPBEMTBNERRTARR
1,587,0007T LA 8% B 70 %5 Bh A8 A 7] 48
FERKHBRRENIESHILE
M REARZSEMHBARERE
HE B8t 75 BT 1l E A DA = X o B A%
BhEYE T

For the year ended 31 December 2021, government grants are mainly
comprised of: (a) an amount of RMB2,500,000 (2020: Nil) being an
incentive from the PRC local government authorities for development
of manufacturing reform of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC;
and (b) an aggregated amount of RMB2,325,100 (2020: Nil) from the
PRC local government authorities for support the business operations
of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC during the outbreak of
COVID-19.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, government grants were
mainly comprised of:

(a)

Annual Report 2021

an amount of RMB2,500,000 being an incentive from the
PRC local government authorities for shut-down obsoleted
production facilities with an aim to advocate conservation of
energy and minimisation of pollutant emission by a Company’s
subsidiary in the PRC;

an aggregated amount of RMB1,587,000 from the PRC local
government authorities for encouraging and subsidising the
investment and expenditure in research and development
activities incurred by the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC as
these subsidiaries had satisfied certain criteria to enjoy research
and development incentives laid down by the relevant local
authorities;
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@

(ii)

(iif)

(Continued)
(0 an aggregated amount of RMB3,356,000 from the PRC
local government authorities for incentives to the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC for increasing their registered capital by
capitalisation of retained profits; and

an aggregated amount of RMB1,638,000 represented
incentives offered by the PRC local government authorities to
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC for promoting various
business activities of the Group.

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
grants.

In 2018, Weifang municipal government issued the Implementation
Plan for Comprehensive Rectification of Atmospheric Ecological
Environment (the “Plan”), pursuant to which the production plant of
Weifang Parasia Chem Co., Ltd. (“Weifang Parasia”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which was located in the central
urban area specified in the Plan had to be relocated mandatorily
(the
Relocation and the land originally occupied by the production site

"Relocation”). In 2020, Weifang Parasia had completed the

of Weifang Parasia was resumed by Weifang municipal government
(the “Land Resumption”) in December 2020. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the right-of-use assets and the property, plant
and equipment of the Weifang Parasia with net carrying amounts
of RMB10,179,000 (note 34) and RMB118,912,000 (note 13(i))
were derecognised accordingly. In December 2020, Weifang Parasia
entitled to a compensation of RMB195,801,000 (note 19(ii)) as a result
of completing the Relocation and the Land Resumption. A gain of
RMB66,710,000 was thereby recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2020. For further details,
please refer to the announcement published by the Company on 28
December 2020.

In 2020, as a result of the Relocation and the Land Resumption, the
property, plant and equipment of Weifang Parasia were derecognised
(note 13(i)), while the relevant grants directly related to these property,
plant and equipment with net carrying amount of RMB7,775,000 was
released to profit or loss accordingly.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

TREV I KRBEERERII AR ZARAEZ The following table provides information about contract liabilities
B} o from contracts with customers.
. —ECTF
2021 2020
AR%T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
&R & (H324) Contract liabilities (note 24) 21,427 14,453

ARABBEXZHEKRAFFHENRESR -
HREBTRANET R _TF+_A
= +— HHERMEFE A ARK13,148,0007T
WARBE K24 CERAEE T ——
FE+-A=+—HILFENEES -

W_E-_—F+-_A=+—H" HpET4EAE
EREARFANEBRBENEENRIER
A ARE21,427,000L (ZE_ZFF : AR
#514,453,00070) * ZE REAE R AEBERTE
H—EMFANBITROVEER B TRERNE
£

/B 90BN

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance consideration
received from customers. Contract liabilities as of 31 December 2020
with the net carrying amounts of RMB13,148,000 (note 24) has
been recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021
as performance obligations satisfied.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
under the Group’s existing contracts is RMB21,427,000 (2020:
RMB14,453,000). This amount represents revenue to be recognised
by the Group when the performance obligation is completed by the
Group within one to two years.

FINANCE COSTS

=¥=—% T _%F
2021 2020
AREF T ABRBET T
RMB'000 RMB'000

RITEFRAE - 2HHEE

Interest on bank borrowings, of which contain a

Hz;zqﬂéj_{?ﬁ repayment on demand clause 4,510 9,729
Sl NI EE A G Interest on advances from ultimate

holding company 1,940 1,678

6,450 11,407
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8.

98

BRATIS B AR 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
—E-—-F —EEF
2021 2020
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B TS %0 Al A Profit before income tax is arrived at
Bk GEA) after charging/(crediting):
BZ=M 2 (FI5E10@)) Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a))
— % — Fees 389 424
— %% BIBEAREMEF - Salaries, discretionary bonus and other benefits 2,490 1,734
— SRR HET 2K (FFEEG) - Retirement benefit scheme contributions (note (i) 108 6
— REEE ARG N2 — Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
HIAR X 383 -
3,370 2,164
H & & AR Other employee costs 152,483 125,314
— BRAREHMEEIE R (MFEEG)) - Retirement benefit scheme contributions (note (i) 10,850 901
— BRELE RO 2 — Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
TR X 410 =
IR B R Total employee costs 167,113 128,379
A AGTT Auditor's remuneration 801 982
AR E#E (M5E34) Amortisation of right-of-use assets (note 34) 1,837 2,142
ER & EE G (M15E15) Amortisation of an intangible asset (note 15) 1,804 1,804
BERRAXZFEXR Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
(fEEEG)) - B35 - (note (i), including: 1,806,861 1,176,617
— WU ZE A EIREE Y — Reversals of write-down of inventories to net
Tr& - FaR (B i) realisable value, net (note (iii) (124) (2,277)
M= WEREZEBEITE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
(HH2E13) (note 13) 121,723 112,068
Y - = MR 2 e Write-off of property, plant and equipment
(B 3313(i) K iii)) (notes 13(ii) and (iii)) 18,980 =
fE 5 Bk - JFEE Exchange losses, net 4,878 5,351
Z SRR EEERE Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment losses
([E18%) (B 5E37(ii)0)) on trade receivables (note 37(ii)(c)) 522 (1,971)
H fth pE W R IR R B B R B R Provision for impairment loss on other receivables
(M =E37(ii)e)) (note 37(iii)(e)) 1,980 _
A R IR GRIB 2 18 Write-off of other receivables 12 _
g RiFEE R Relocation and demolished expenses - 8,296
HEWZE  BEREHEZ Loss on disposals of property, plant and
E51E - FE equipment, net 128 _
SHAIFR S MM E R (Ffi3E34)  Lease payments in respect of short-term leases
(note 34) 3,904 4,136
TR A (BT 3E(iv)) Research costs (note (iv)) 80,598 45,074

RECTERBRAF —S- 55K
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= —F+=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes:

0]

(ii)

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were neither
contributions forfeited by the Group nor had there been any utilisation
of such forfeited contributions to reduce future contributions. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, there were no forfeited contributions which
were available for utilisation by the Group to reduce the existing level
of contributions to the MPF Scheme and the Central Pension Schemes.

Cost of inventories includes approximately RMB118,407,000 (2020:
RMB110,985,000) relating to depreciation expenses and approximately
RMB117,929,000 (2020: RMB89,644,000) relating to employee costs.
These amounts are included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above.

The reversals are mainly due to increase in net realisable value of
certain finished goods held on hands.

Research costs include approximately RMB714,000 (2020:
RMB693,000) relating to depreciation expenses and approximately
RMB21,843,000 (2020: RMB16,562,000) relating to employee costs.
These amounts are included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above.

B

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—E-—-F —E-EF
2021 2020
AR®T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

BERFE IE — R B 2 FT 1S 7 Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
— FEHRIEA — Tax for the year 125,581 25,730
— BAEFEBREREE — Over-provision in prior years - (4,361)
BT B B TR R AR PRC dividend withholding tax paid 12,564 164
138,145 21,533

EIEFTE (KI5E16) Deferred tax (note 16)

— RIEFEREAE B ERTLIE  — Derecognition of deferred tax assets in
EEAE BT IBEE relations to tax losses previously recognised - 372
— FAFTA — Charged for the year 5,661 11,233
Fr 5% 5 2 Income tax expense 143,806 33,138
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9.

FREHimx (&)

P 1595 7 S SRR P 1585 A4 A SR A AR B 12 3¢

FrSBIB R 2 T WERMT

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and profit before income

tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as follows:

—E—F —EEF

2021 2020

ARET T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

B BT 15 5 Bl ) Profit before income tax 536,256 111,119
1 TS B R 25% Tax at PRC enterprise income tax rate of 25%

(ZEZZF : 25%) (2020:25%)

SEZHIA 134,064 27,780
TR 2R E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,423 1,593
B A% B B IR R PRC dividend withholding tax 12,564 164
FRABERERREBE 2 Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

g2 not previously recognised (9,028) (546)
AERHEERBZRETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 3,533 8,617
BRIFEREB T B R Derecognition of deferred tax assets

MIBEEAEE in relations to tax losses previously

BT IR E B recognised - 372
BEFEBBARE Over-provision in prior years - (4,361)
HAh, Others 1,250 (481)
PS8 7 2 Income tax expense 143,806 33,138

HAY EAERBELBRTUEN - BEEL
BARNEHEE

BE_Z_—F+_HA=+—HLEFE =&
RNEEP BRI BB A RIREHE25% (=
T_FTF 1 25%) BMPEL KM -

REF B EREHE - ERBERIINEE
ERARNFREHBAREMUN ST NF
—A—B#%& 8% MIKERBR  FEU5%
H10BWTERT - REEZT ——F+= A
= +—HLEFE ANEBE P HTERTEF
M5%3K10% (T T F : 10% ) HFEREF
B o

100 XELCIEZERERIT —E-—FFRH

No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made as no
assessable profit derives from Hong Kong.

The Company'’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a withholding tax
of 5% or 10% will be levied on the immediate holding companies
outside the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out
of profits earned after 1 January 2008. The Group has adopted 5%
or 10% (2020: 10%) withholding tax rate for PRC withholding tax
purpose for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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10. ESRENEEBNHS 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEM= (@) Directors’ emoluments
BEfENTELNESCMENT Emoluments paid or payables to each Director were as follows:
RELE

BHER  URGXA

SRR AR

Retirement Equity-settled

Hit R HERA benefit  share-based

we #e Other Discretionary scheme  payment R
Fees Salaries benefits bonus contributions expenses Total

AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTr ARETR ARRT:R
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

—R-fF 2021
HTES Executive Directors
25 Liu Yang - 680 py) 131 36 213 1,082
FFI Wang Zijiang - 800 35 158 36 - 1,029
e Chen Xiaohua

(W=Z=—% (appointed on

—A—B%f) 1 January 2021) - 500 35 129 36 170 870
FaTES Non-executive Director
DEX Guo Yucheng

(M=ZZZF  (resigned on

—A—HEE)  1lanuary 2022) 10 - - - - - 10

BUFHTEE  Independent
non-executive

Directors
2HE Leung Kam Wan 137 - - - - - 137
REE Gao Baoyu 121 - - - - - 121
Elo Liu Chenguang 121 - - - - - 121
ZE--F4%  Total for 2021 389 1,980 92 418 108 383 3370
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10. EERaREEENME (&)

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) EEM 2 (2E) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
RIKEF
PRI
Retirement
HHtiEF| BETEa benefit
e e Other  Discretionary scheme =il
Fees Salaries benefits bonus  contributions Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RIVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—ECEE 2020
HITES Executive Directors
215 Liu Yang - 680 14 83 3 780
FFI Wang Zijiang - 800 27 130 3 960
FHITES Non-executive Directors
Elps Liu Hongliang
(R=Z=—% (resigned on
—R—B&fA) 1 January 2021) 10 = - - - 10
BEK Guo Yucheng 10 - - - - 10
BUkHTES Independent non-executive
Directors
PRE Leung Kam Wan 146 = - - - 146
BEE Gao Baoyu 129 - = = = 129
A=K Liu Chenguang 129 = = = - 129
ZECBERG Total for 2020 424 1,480 41 213 6 2,164

FERN AEBTERTMES I NT
IS - {EAINAKNSE B~ 525 =k B
BiE(CEZ_FF  |E) -

FR-WEEMNLHEHEERNEFTR
RIAEHETAHE (T _FF

=) -

BE_ T _ZFR_FT-_—F+_A4
=+—BLFE WBEADNEES

BEARRETE °

102 XELIZERERAT —ZT-—FFRH

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any Directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year (2020: Nil).

There are no arrangements under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the year (2020: Nil).

The discretionary bonus are determined by individual
performance of the Directors for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2021.
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10. EENSHREEENNE (&) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
b) EEESMEAL (b) Five highest paid individuals

11.

FR-EAKERSMEcARAL
EH =R (CTE_TF WA RE
F EEMe 2 FRERBRNREXZE
Szt - BRNESB-R(ZE-F
F=ZR)ALZBEMT

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group during the year included three (2020: two) Directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. Emoluments payable to the remaining two (2020:
three) individuals are as follows:

—E-—F —BCFF

2021 2020

AR¥T T AREETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

4 WISTELA R EMEF  Salaries, discretionary bonus and other benefits 1,711 2,205
BRIREFIET B K Retirement benefit scheme contributions 30 35
1,741 2,240

ZEALTZHEBRATEE

The emoluments of the individuals were within the following
bands:

AE
Number of Individuals
—F-—F —ECEF
2021 2020
B < 48 51 - Emoluments bands:
= 2 71,000,000 Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 1 2
75 #£1,000,001 72 HK$1,000,001 to
75 %51,500,0007T HK$1,500,000 1 1
B E 11. DIVIDEND
—F-—F bt
2021 2020
ARBT T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SBEFEEENRERE Final dividend paid in respect of
FREK003 T (ZE_FF : &) prior year HK$0.03 (2020: Nil) per share 21,423 =
EEEepEE—_E-_—F+-_A=+—~H The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK$0.20 (2020:
LEF RIR AR EA R B 8 AR E R AR 8 #50.207T HK$0.03) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
—EFF B0 c EEAKE December 2021. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
WARITIRE M RMER R BENRE payable in these financial statements.
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12. BREF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
RABIHEE ANEEBRERREERT TR The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
BATE®RTE owners of the Company is based on the following data:
—EC-F —T_FHF
2021 2020
AR®F AR®ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A RHER AR F R A Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company 379,647 94,821
ZERHE
Number of ordinary shares
—EB-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
TR &
‘000 ‘000
ATEEREARBERT Weighted average number of ordinary
T AR N 19 21 shares for the purpose of basic and diluted
earnings per share 851,954 851,954
HE_Z - —FR-_ZT_ZFF+_HA=1— Diluted earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
HILFE  BARRHEE ARGRNN S 2 Company for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
iﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁ%'ﬁﬁiiﬂx%$ﬁﬂ$ﬁﬁ o AT the same as basic earnings per share. The computation of diluted
NAERETEERRND FEMERS - W earnings per share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
SAEEREERNKRBRAAANREBEE share options for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
TERIZEZEFTA=T—RHIEFE because the exercise prices of the Company’s share options were
I FRATR RE AR A o higher than the average market prices for shares.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

——®F+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

i BE
EBRRE
RENELE BEREH RE Furniture, ERIR
£ Leasehold Plant and Motor  fixturesand  Construction &it
Buildings improvements machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
AE®TE  ARBTr ARETr ARETR AR¥Tr ARETr ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZ-Z%-F-H Asat1January 2020
KA Cost 351,028 35 1,342,298 4,004 11,279 180,663 1,889,307
ZEMERBESR  Acumulated deprecition
and impairment losses (107,599) (35 (660,219) (3,091) (9,417) - (780,361)
RAFE Net carrying amount 243,429 - 682,079 913 1,862 180,663 1,108,946
REFE Net carrying amount
RZZ-ZF-F—-B Asat1January 2020 243,429 - 682,079 913 1,862 180,663 1,108,946
0 Additions 182 - 21978 302 211 145,563 168,236
R IFFERR (H3H) Derecognised (note () (28.826) - (89,577) - (509) - (118912)
irkS Disposals (24) - (2,099) (77) - - (2,200
& Depreciation (14,344) - (96,720) (376) (628) - (112,068)
TREENIE Reclassified upon completion 27,601 - 172,791 - 249 (200,641) -
RZZ-8E As at 31 December 2020
+=B=t-H 228,018 - 688,452 762 1,185 125,585 1,044,002
RZBZ%% As at 31 December 2020
T-R=t-H
KA Cost 314,335 - 1,175,263 3,899 8,565 125,585 1,627,647
ZENERBESR  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (86,317) - (486,811) (3.137) (7.380) - (583,645)
RAFE Net carrying amount 228,018 - 688,452 762 1,185 125,585 1,044,002
REFE Net carrying amount
RZE=—F—-F—H Asat1January 2021 228,018 - 688,452 762 1,185 125,585 1,044,002
0 Additions 1,120 - 9N 1,190 582 171,923 184,586
8 (B SR Rai) Write-off (notes (i) and (i) - - - - - (18,980) (18,980)
e Disposals (486) - - (38) - (2,169) (2,693)
ik Depreciation (15,557) - (105,144) (535) (487) - (121,723)
THEENAE Reclassified upon completion 17,555 - 73515 - 2 (91,090) -
R=B=-% As at 31 December 2021
+=HA=+-H 230,650 - 666,594 1379 1,300 185,269 1,085,192
R=B=-% As at 31 December 2021
t-R=t-R
A Cost 332,210 - 1,258,549 4,142 9,076 185,269 1,789,246
SENERBESRE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (101,560) - (591,955) (2,763) (7,776) - (704,054)
REFE Net carrying amount 230,650 - 666,594 1379 1,300 185,269 1,085,192
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13. ¥I% - -BERRE(E) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
REEEBFURETHAEERE <R EHE The Group’s buildings are situated on leasehold lands under
Bt o medium-term in the PRC.

B ek Notes:

(i) AR T % IRE (il aEed) - HE=_T=F (i)  As a result of completing the Relocation (note 6(ii)), the property, plant
FTZA=1+—RHIFE #AHHEZER and equipment of the Weifang Parasia with net carrying amounts of
FEATE AR ¥118,912,0007T B ¥ % « B RMB118,912,000 were derecognised for the year ended 31 December
B R RBE AR IR 2020.

(il BHREBARBEITEREREZZLZ (i) The construction of environment and protection facilities failed to meet
B ERRERREREREINEEERK - the statutory requirements because of the contractor did not fulfil the
It ZERERIBGEEIRRERAGEE contractual requirement to build the core equipment. As a result, these
B IREBE_TE-_—F+=-_A=+—H facilities and components could not function in pursuant to the original
LE4F 2 4% EHE SR BR HDF B A K 855,780,000 purpose, the net carrying amount of RMB5,780,000 was derecognised
I, © for the year ended 31 December 2021.

(i) FEWRAB(ERFEROERRKE R (i) The construction of production line for a proposed new product was
MABGSHRTIREEBETEE  BENTE terminated owing to the expected future cash inflow from this new
mAEERDARIEEE - ALt EEHEE product became insignificant and uncertain which caused by the
BAEERMEKAFILER  TREEZ change in market conditions. Consequently, the Directors approved
T+ A=1T—HIEFELKRILERR that the production facilities were permanently withdrawn from use
EFE A KR #13,200,0007T © and the aggregate net carrying amount of RMB13,200,000 was

derecognised for the year ended 31 December 2021.

14. REWYH 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REMENDARBLEE=ZRBNLEEERR The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair value
B2 - BT EIRE A 2 (B 45 eRERBR E (E measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value
SR BERBE T balances and changes to the carrying amounts is summarised as

follows:
—B-—F —TTF
2021 2020
AR%T AR®ETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

n—A— At 1 January 22,900 23,900

E5d éf#%% {h B8 Revaluation losses on investment properties (1,300) (1,000)

R+—A=+—H At 31 December 21,600 22,900

BENFER T —F+=-A=1+—HHEHE Investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2021 by an

TR EMTEESEXRB AR AR (F
B HRT B R SR EITE
& - EfLEE ARY1,300,000C (ZFE=F
F: AR#1,000,0000T) EREHE=_ZT =
F+-A=t+—HIFETEBRER
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independent firm of chartered surveyors, Eidea Professional Services
Company Limited, who has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. Revaluation loss of R\MB1,300,000
(2020: RMB1,000,000) was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's investment properties are situated on leasehold lands
under medium-term in the PRC.

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

The fair value of investment properties is determined using direct
comparison approach based on the principle of substitution, where
the comparison is made based on asking prices of comparable

Z AL RS E T M © properties. Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature,
character and location are analysed.
i [F
Range
—E-—F —EZFF
Fa B R AE : Unobservable input(s): 2021 2020
YIRS 2 RE Premium on characteristic of the properties -6% to 7% 9% to 17%
MEMERFE (BEXR J %ﬁﬁ ME - Higher premium for the characteristic (including size, scale, nature,
BHERUE)MRERS  AISBEERS character and location) of the investment properties will result in

ZRRME -

HERMRERLERE - DAEFERE
R YR & m MR EEAMREE - 8
EREEELERAR -

15.

correspondingly higher fair value.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

BREE 15. INTANGIBLE ASSET
il 55
Technical
knowhow
AR®T T
RMB’000
RZEBE_ZEF—F—H At 1 January 2020 13,979
# 55 Amortisation (1,804)
RZZEZEFF+_A=+—HEK At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
R-ZZE=——F—A—H 12,175
iy Amortisation (1,804)
R-TBE-_—F+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 2021 10,371

BVEESHEN_Z—LFNAREHRIM
FGE o BT A E LB R E AT A
ERFH0FFR - LEFABZEARERT
T R EMEERX

This represented technical knowhow acquired in September 2017.
Amortisation on technical knowhow is charged on straight-line
method over its estimated useful life of 10 years and is included in
administrative and other operating expenses on the consolidated
income statement.
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16. IEFEFIIE

FEBEBRAATEEELERREE, (8

16. DEFERRED TAX

The following is the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised

&) : by the Group:
5
KWEAR
HEFR RABHE
B Undistributed
Impairment ~ REWE  BEWA  profitsof  EFEE
BER loss Investment  Deferred foreign  Intangible Bt
Taxlosses  allowance  properties income  subsidiaries asset Total
ARBTT ARETn ARETR AR%Tr ARETR ARETR ARET:x
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—Z-25-A-H At 1 January 2020 17,420 8,055 (11,158) 1,944 (6,000) (3,495) 6,766
25< \FRER S FE R Derecognition of deferred tax
HEEBAE Z?JEE assets in relations to tax losses
REEE (f79) previously recognised (note 9) (372) - = - - . (372
(BEHIR) /st B (Charged)/Credited to profit or
(P29 loss (note 9) (10,115) (94) 469 (1,944) - 451 (11,233)
R-E-FE+-A=1—H At31 December 2020 and
“T--%—-f-H 1 January 2021 6,933 7,961 (10,689) - (6,000) (3,044) (4,839)
E (BERME) /Gt A B (Charged)/Credited to profit or
(FitEo) loss (note 9) (6.912) (94) 894 - - 451 (5,661)
WZZE-—F+-F=1—H At31 December 2021 21 7,867 (9,795) - (6,000) (2,593) (10,500)
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the
consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

—E-—F —E-THF

2021 2020

AR®F T AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R TBE E Deferred tax assets 7.888 14,894
RIEF A E Deferred tax liabilities (18,388) (19,733)
(10,500) (4,839)

RikE B AEEHA AR EREE
AR #91,278,000L (ZE =T F : AR
75,735,0007T) LA 3K 88 #% 2R &9 & F o R
ZEWBRAREAAIIRNE R =5
BE R 2R & A S AT TR ORI - AR A B A
R #91,278,000t (T T F: ARK
75,735,0007T) MERE(AEEFH B E E o

AR ARRHEHEKMBARMKERE - B
FE AT B #8 SR IR K AT BE O] BE B B 2= 58+ i
AEEES THEMNBARNR 2T /\F
— A — B#EKRIE L BRF mSMmE TB IR fE
SIRIERTE 8 FE4 A R #68,749,0007T (=
—TF: AR¥62,280,000T) c R T = —
F+-A=1+—H ZSAEHEANEFH
B AR 687,494,000 (ZE T F : AR
#622,803,0007T) °

At the reporting date, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of RMB91,278,000 (2020: RMB75,735,000) for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB91,278,000 (2020: RMB75,735,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of these subsidiaries which
have such deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities of approximately RMB68,749,000 (2020:
RMB62,280,000) have not been established for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in the PRC made after 1 January 2008 because the
Company controls the dividend policy of its subsidiaries and
it is not probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future. Such unremitted earnings totalled
approximately RMB687,494,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB622,803,000).

7E 17. INVENTORIES
—EB-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
AR¥T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R R RSB RE Raw materials and consumables 49,716 29,317
e e Work in progress 34,814 20,283
X S Finished goods 128,743 61,182
213,273 110,782
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18.

EZRVWERREKRRE 18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
—B-—F —TTF
2021 2020
AR®ET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Z 5 EUER Trade receivables 338,618 163,273
i ANES Bills receivable 175,572 88,938
514,190 252,211
B OREEEEE Less: Impairment loss allowance
(PR =E37(ii)(c)) (note 37(iii)c)) (1,500) (978)
512,690 251,233

AEBGTESRPZEEH BN T—ME
BEANBAARE (ZZE-_ZF : N F—@A
EXNEAATE) - BIREE AT B ZRTT
EAEE  BRRABRTR—FUR(ZZE=
TFE:—FPR) - BURFHEARAEG 2R
BiEERE - AEER O HEWESERER
BREZ G - EEES T HEERBARK -

REBH - BHRKELEKREE 0K
BRERR) REZABMEZRES TN
T

The Group allows credit periods normally ranging from one month to
six months (2020: one month to six months) to its trade customers.
Bills receivable are non-interest bearing bank acceptance bills and
aged within a year (2020: within a year) upon issuance. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are

reviewed regularly by management.

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable (net of loss allowance) at
the reporting date, based on the invoice date, is stated as follows:

—E-—F —ZEZFF

2021 2020

AREF T AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

0%290H 0 to 90 days 465,461 206,214
91£180H 91 to 180 days 38,950 34,038
181£365H 181 to 365 days 7,910 9,643
HB365H Over 365 days 369 1,338
512,690 251,233
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed bank acceptance bills
(the “Endorsed Bills”) issued by several banks in the PRC (the “Issuing
Banks”) with a carrying amount of RMB1,179,559,000 (2020:
RMB649,890,000), with maturity within one year (2020: within one
year) to certain of its suppliers for settlement of its trade and other
payables due to these suppliers (the “Endorsement”). Among of the
Endorsed Bills with a carrying amount of RMB578,006,000 (2020:
RMB309,878,000) were not matured as at 31 December 2021.
In accordance with the Negotiable Instruments Law of the PRC,
a holder of the Endorsed Bills has a right of recourse against the
Group if default of payment by the Issuing Banks (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, all risks and rewards
relating to the Endorsed Bills have been substantially transferred
upon the Endorsement. Accordingly, the Group has derecognised
the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated
trade and other payables. The maximum exposure arising from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Endorsed Bills equal to
their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values
of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills were
not significant.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had
not recognised any gain or loss arising from of the Endorsed Bills. No
gain or loss were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the years or cumulative years. The Endorsement had been
made evenly throughout the years.

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable (net of loss
allowance) are denominated in the following currencies:

—E-—-F —ZEZEF

2021 2020

ARET AR®EFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR RMB 341,720 202,264
ETT US$ 170,970 48,969
512,690 251,233

R-EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H EBKZE
AR #175,572,000c (2 —_ZF : ARK
88,938,0007T) & A i E&T A H At 2 E W z=
e BKEBNARBEAFE —AFIBNAR
BT 2 @ TYEBAFERIKK - EERRAFE
FHIMRA A T A& A1 A A 2 F| R ALIR FEH R
KIBEMEMETE - FAR - WERE—RH
HE LB AABERERZEHNERE - hEE
AEBHE=FR(ZT_TF : &) -

7R 52 B AR IR PN SE3(h) P s B0 & At ISR R RRURK
BEE - FHIBERMEE37(ii)0) R(d)

As at 31 December 2021, bills receivable amounting to
RMB175,572,000 (2020: RMB88,938,000) was measured at
FVOCI. The fair value of bills receivable was at a level 2 fair value
measurement which has been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. During the year,
there was no transfer between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchy
or transfer into or out of level 3 (2020: Nil).

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in note 3(h), details of which are set out in to note
37(iii)(c) and (d).
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19. EAREREMEWRFIE

19. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E-—-F —EFF
2021 2020
AR®T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B EEAE N Advances to suppliers 43,027 25,264
Al Y [B] HY 38 (E F Value-added-tax recoverables 10,090 17,380
TET IR Prepayments 478 510
FEU AT B A R FKIB Amounts due from a former subsidiary
(B EG)) (note (i) 40,504 44,993
L a4 U Hh e S A (B R IR Compensation receivable for the Land
(P EEGi)) Resumption (note (ii)) 49,886 175,801
b i W kB (B =EGin) Other receivables (note (ii)) 4,805 3,965
148,790 267,913
B FEULRT I B A B FRIE A Less: impairment loss on amounts due
A ETE (FT5EG) from a former subsidiary (note (i) (24,720) (24,720)
H b fE B IB R R EE 1B impairment loss on other receivables
(B 5Gii)) (note (iii)) (1,980) _
122,090 243,193
B = - Notes:

R-T-—F+-A=+—08 ER—X5
/8~ RIFIE CREHEREEEEE) 258
B AR®40,504,000 (ZZEZFF : AR
#544,993,0007T) ° % &R B IEZ AT B A
AIA—1E T ER I REELERARK
9,973,000t (=T =4 : AR%9,973,000
JL) v 3D & 58 A R #24,720,0007T (=
T T AR®24,720,0007T) I £ K
AR ALREERE - &1z A1k
JBR R B AT ISR - BRIFEGEE B
BB AOR - A I FE Y% A B B A &) £ 1 1
KRIEE R ARE24,720,00000 (ZF =
T4 AR #24,720,0005T) £ 7] 78 B #
AR A] g AW c Bk - R — 4
+ZA=+—H KEHMBERAXRER
JE W =% A0 B BB A Bl sRIE M R E B B A
R #24,720,000 (ZZT = F : ARK
24,720,00070) F MEZE =T - —F+=H
=t HIEFEZEERERI EFTIRTE
SNBEEERE(ZE_2F - &) -

112 XECIEZERERIT —E-—FFR)

Amounts due from a former subsidiary before impairment loss
allowance was RMB40,504,000 (2020: RMB44,993,000) as at 31
December 2021. This balance included an amount of outstanding
balance of RMB9,973,000 (2020: RMB9,973,000), which is secured
by a piece of land of the former subsidiary whilst part of amount
of RMB24,720,000 (2020: RMB24,720,000) was unsecured and
considered as credit impaired. In light of the current financial
situation of the former subsidiary, the unsecured outstanding balance
of RMB24,720,000 (2020: RMB24,720,000) was highly unlikely
recoverable in the foreseeable future, unless appropriate amounts of
financing sources are obtained. Thus, an impairment loss on amounts
due from this former subsidiary amounting to RMB24,720,000 (2020:
RMB24,720,000) was made accordingly in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and there was no
additional impairment loss allowance charged to the consolidated
income statement for year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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37 B 5% Wi i 2 15 48 8 A R #6195,801,000
T FRABWE AT BRAREAR
#125,915,000t (CTE-TF : AR
20,000,0007T) MESFEHHEAR
#49,886,000L (CTE-_TF : ARK
175,801,0007T) A —F REEE - IRE LR
BUBARR R P ERAREE EF A EAM
FE W RIE o

BEZRR _E-_—F+=-_A=+=—HBH
ARAHBHOER FEEHERBRAE
AANKMBARRERES RIEHEE A
M+ AR SR ATl A B 7E WO B S E 0 1%
B LR E R RIS E B E—T — —
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B & B A K %1,980,0007T ©

(iii)

ANE B R BR3Pl 89 & 5T IR R HE R
H 8 UGRIR AR BB 1R - FFIT BN A
37(iii)e) °

20. EEBBITER

R-ZTE-_—F+=-_A=+—H —%417
17 2 A R #3,00070 1B 1% & B AT @ < # 1T
B (EAFARENRE R F
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19. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

20.

(ii)

(iif)

As detailed in note 6(ii), Weifang Parasia was entitled to a
compensation of RMB195,801,000 as a result of the Land Resumption
in 2020. An amount of RMB125,915,000 (2020: RMB20,000,000)
was received from Weifang municipal government during the year and
the Directors expected that the remaining balance of RMB49,886,000
(2020: RMB175,801,000) will be settled within one year, therefore, it is
recognised as other receivables under current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

According to the court judgement granted on 22 December 2021
arising from a contractual dispute, a contractor was obligated to
refund the deposit and make compensation to the Company’s
subsidiary. However, the recoverability of the refund and compensation
was highly unlikely after assessing the financial ability of the contractor
by the Group. The impairment loss allowance of RMB1,980,000 was
recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group recognised impairment loss on other receivables based on
the accounting policy stated in note 3(h), details of which are set out
in to note 37(iii)(e).

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, a bank deposit of RMB3,000 was pledged
to secure a litigation case under the PRC court order. As at 31
December 2020, a bank deposit of RMB7,000 was pledged for
payable for legal proceeding fee.

The Directors consider that the fair values of the pledged bank
deposits are not materially different from their carrying amount
because of the short maturity period.
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21.

22.

RITREA LR 21. BANK AND CASH BALANCES
AEBZRITAREGEHRUAARBTE A The Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to RMB208,541,000
AR #208,541,000L (ZE =T F : AR (2020: RMB98,559,000) were denominated in RMB. Conversion of
98,559,0007T) ° AR H I AINERT - ZHIE RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
th B 2 SN B HIE ) R A TE - SIE R TEE Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales and
BHREPIE o Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
RITFEFRIEAT ARITERANEAERNED) Bank deposits earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank
FZBRELFI S o deposit rates.
RTINS AR BREERIA TERGHE - The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are denominated in
the following currencies:
—E-—F ZEZFF
2021 2020
AR®T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
S HK$ 1,754 255
ETT us$ 13,132 26,500
AR RMB 208,541 98,559
BT EUR 2,922 -
226,349 125,314
BESEMAER 22. TRADE PAYABLES
EORNERENZEENEESRBENT Trade payables normally have the credit periods ranging from 30 to
30 E270BEAE (ZE T F : NF308E 270 days (2020: 30 to 270 days). Ageing analysis of trade payables
27087 %) - RiREBHE - EFEMNIRRIE at the reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
NEBZEZAHFEZRRTOT ¢
—E-—F —ZEZFF
2021 2020
ARE T AR®EFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0Z90H 0 to 90 days 44,618 36,856
91%180H 91 to 180 days 1,310 818
181%365H 181 to 365 days 335 191
HEi8365H Over 365 days 1,115 1171
47,378 39,036

BEHRNERENEENEIMELIAARE
FHE - TARREYREHME - HE HEN
REENRENREEN SEREREQA
B4

114 RBECIZRERAT —Z-—FFH

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in RMB.
All amounts are short-term and hence the carrying values of trade
payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of their
fair values.
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PEAS ARAY BR AR IR H At PB4 TR TE 23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
—E-—fF —ETTF
2021 2020
AR®T T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRAME BEKFREHEMNSRIE Payables for property, plant and equipment 124,636 128,814
FER AR TFRX Accrued expenses 20,037 18,921
B TE KRB Wages and welfare payables 18,128 13,146
FET E fthdth 5 R IE Other local tax payables 13,192 1,086
H b fE St I8 Other payables 45,614 69,460
221,607 231,427
ERAE 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
—E-— —EFF
2021 2020
AR%T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRBEEES Contract liabilities arising from:
SHE R TE MR Sale of fine chemical products 21,427 14,453
AEBEFHERMAE TERKINBET S B The deposits received by the Group on sales of fine chemical
EREE EEEMRXNTEFBL - products remain as contract liabilities until such time as goods are

delivered to customers.

EREBENEEWNT : Movement of the contract liabilities is as follows:
—EB=-—F —ETF
2021 2020
AREF T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MN—A— B4 Balance as at 1 January 14,453 15,803
R AL SR 7 55 (i sE6) Net amounts recognised as revenue (note 6) (13,148) (14,888)

P UE A 2 FUFRE Net amounts received in advance from

customers 20,122 13,538
R+—A=+—H%&% Balance at 31 December 21,427 14,453
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25. SRITER

25. BANK BORROWINGS

—E-—fF —E_THF
2021 2020
AR®T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB ERRITERK Bank borrowings due for repayment
—IREBSREHK—FR () — On demand or within one year (note) 60,000 110,000

GRS

FIERITEZTENANARKFE RZZTE=—F
+=A=+—H8 " AR%20,000,000t (=ZZ =
T4 AR #90,000,0007T) & A K 40,000,000
T (ZE=ZF : AR#20,000,0007T) H R 1T &
KD B BEARRES B E R FERE R AR
HEFE AR 61,748,000 (ZE—ZF : AR¥E
29,850,0007T ) Y7 5= (B {50 FR A 14 EE (R -

RZTBE-Z—F+-A=+—H8 AE=EHR
TERCTEIZER G HEASEEEE (T
SHEMIRESRIEE GO E) BT

Note:

All bank borrowings are denominated in RMB. As at 31 December
2021, bank borrowings of RMB20,000,000 (2020: RMB90,000,000) and
RMB40,000,000 (2020: RMB20,000,000) are guaranteed by the Company’s
subsidiary in the PRC and secured by the Group's right-of-use asset with the
net carrying amount of RMB61,748,000 (2020: RMB29,850,000) respectively.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings were scheduled
to repay which set out in the loan agreements if ignore the effect of
any repayment on demand clause as follows:

—E-—-F —EZFF

2021 2020

AR®T R ARETTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

—FR Within one year 60,000 110,000

AEBRITERNBERFENZEENT -

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum of the Group'’s bank
borrowings are as follows:

—EB=-—F —E-THF
2021 2020
AR®T T AR®ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

N =preeos
3 BB

—AARBE

Floating-rate borrowings
— Denominated in RMB

4.80% t0 5.66% 4.80% to 7.00%

EEEBERMENEHRRASREMREAM
RETRITIERNAAE  YRARERE R
HIARSEBRITERNREEEE A A ERT -

116 XEECIZRERAT —Z-—FFH

The Directors estimate the fair value of the bank borrowings by
discounting their future cash flows at the market rate and consider
that the carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
approximate to their fair values at each reporting date.
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ADVANCES FROM A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Advances from a non-controlling shareholder is unsecured, interest
free and due for repayment within one year.

ADVANCES FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, advances from ultimate holding company
mainly represent loans with principal amount of RMB90,000,000
(2020: RMB90,000,000 and HK$14,300,000 (equivalent to
RMB12,048,000)), which are unsecured, interest-bearing at 2% per
annum, and due for repayment within one year.

N 28. SHARE CAPITAL
RGO A
Number of S
shares Amount
TR BT T ARET T
‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
VERE Authorised:
HERmESE0.01TTEERK Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

R_ZE-_ZTF—HF—H- As at 1 January 2020,

ZE_TE+-_A=+—8 - 31 December 2020,

T —F—H-BHK 1 January 2021 and

—E-—&F+—-H=+—H 31 December 2021 100,000,000 1,000,000
BEITRERE Issued and fully paid:
IR EB0.01TE B Ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each

RZZE=ZF—H—AH" As at 1 January 2020,

—ETFE+_/F=+—H - 31 December 2020,

T —F—A—HK 1 January 2021 and

T —F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2021 851,954 8,520 7,831
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29. f#fE 29. RESERVES
KE Group
AEBZFERBEESBEGEERZEE The Group's reserves and movements therein are presented in the
£5l) 0 consolidated statement of changes in equity.
AN Company
HNEELRHE
Foreign BRERE
R E currency Share  {REEA
Share translation option Retained Bt
premium reserve reserve profits Total

ARETT ARETR AR%Trn AR¥Tn ARETn
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(@) (i E(e)) (GE)

(note (a)) (note () (note (f))

R-E-_ZF—F—A#&# Balance at 1 January 2020 114,822 (19,439) 4,706 214,919 315,008
RIS EBRRAE (T +E30) Forfeit of share options (note 30) = = (416) 416 =
AERER Loss for the year - - - (12,410) (12,410)
Hin 2 Ela Other comprehensive income - (14,945) = = (14,945)

RZZE-_ZTF+-F=1+—HK Balance at 31 December 2020 and

—E--F-A-B&#H 1 January 2021 114,822 (34,384) 4,290 202,925 287,653
YRNZE_TEREEE 2020 final dividend paid (note 11)

(Pt5E11) - - - (21,423) (21,423)
% W AR (B 3E30) Forfeit of share options (note 30) - - (195) 195 -
RIEEE ARO[ 2 Equity-settled share-based payment

AR (FFE30) expenses (note 30) - - 793 - 793
REE R Profit for the year - - - 232,193 232,193
Hip 2 Ez Other comprehensive income - (5,444) - - (5,444)
WZZE=Z—F+-F=+—H  Balance at 31 December 2021 114,822 (39,828) 4,888 413,890 493,772
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29. & (&) 29. RESERVES (Continued)
KEERAEAT Group and company
(a) MBfEE (a) Share premium

RERSHERRE  ARFAKRMNE
BRAZESARDIRTARBHEA
A HEEEEZZEDIRRE BHRE K
NEIERENEENBEEBKBES
B2 (BT o

HhlREE

Bl RERBEASER _ZTHF
ETZEARKRBTENRBARCE
BAEMEARR SRS ZFME L FE
HEMET AR RN EERBNZE
B e

B ES

AABEFRBKL ZHBRAR 2 ERR
HMAETE ZENBRAREFAKR
s aflzeTastE@BEEA
AT EEABEIEMERZ
50% &Ll E—RIBERT  BHRAE
SCEERERE SRBEEALHE
AFMEARIEFZRBRARIZEER
KEZH BHRARSBIEEARNE A
AMEARE  FEIHBEIB LN
&R 225% °

DNEE

BRER _ZTXRF—H—-BEMGPEH
RAVE(MR_ZEZRFEIDAZEH
B ERBEKS 2 AR RNE LA
ZAR5%E10% 2 bf P15 11 1& 00 F B
REE MARERAREEZER
BAHMARBEREE 2 FE - R
EITERZIBAT  RRETMEDIK

SVESRE SR

SN IE R R B RR BB ER
BRAMEEZBIERZ/ - %i#EH
RIBH FE3(A)PT R E 5t ERR B ©

BREREE
RFAXERFE TR EBRERIR
57 B HRERR

Hitvf#
ARBEFEKRLZETE2ENBA
A AR 5 8 AR B st M B B IA
EIMEEMEAR -

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
the share premium account of the Company are distributable
to the owners of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

This represents the difference between the paid up registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2004 and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange for the control in these
subsidiaries.

Surplus reserve fund

Articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC require the appropriation of certain percentage of
their profits after income tax each year to the surplus reserve
fund until the balance reaches 50% of their registered capitals.
In normal circumstances, the surplus reserve fund shall only be
used for making up losses, capitalisation into registered capital
and expansion of the subsidiaries’ production and operation.
For the capitalisation of surplus reserve fund into registered
capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital.

Public welfare fund

Pursuant to relevant regulations before the enactment of
Company Law of the PRC (revised in 2005) on 1 January
2006, the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC made
allocation from their profits after income tax at the rate of 5%
to 10% to the public welfare fund. Public welfare fund can
only be utilised on capital nature items for collective welfare of
employees and is not distributable other than in liquidation.

Foreign currency translation reserve

This reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3(d).

Share option reserve
Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share
options to the employees over the vesting period.

Other reserve

This reserve represent certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company established in the PRC had capitalised its retained
profits to increase its registered capital in prior years.
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30.

LR % 2 KA

ARRARRZZEZENF+ BB HAERE
HE (=22 FHEIREE]) R =F
—NFRA-THERNS —EBEREE
(=== "FRERETS)) @ 5 ERE &
HEAREZ EMERIELERZE R ' &
BAEBEAKEARKBLERARZES
GEREER  HER -BF k%ﬁ&%%
QZ%%A&$EIZEWﬁ%3A
= /\EE%HXFE;‘I'zJEE— = = /\£|E+H V_El E| i
£ BT F o BE_STAFHERE
=T 2 7] #% i 5 %40,000,00015 & A% # - B
FHiFH AEFIREEE 240,000,000 /%15 °
R FEREEER = —FAaA
“tHRIE BT NFEERETE 2
B BERBERRITEZEBRERESS
MR A] FAITE e —F—NFRERENSHE=
T RNERA-THBAR ARE+E-
BIEZT— R FERETE B RE &
ﬁm&mmﬁ%k% T HEEB ARER
R B B %284,687,800/% i fn o R T = —4F
NAZ+8  BE-ZT—NFEREFEE
118,000,000 lEAx #E (Z T T F : ) o
Rz B AR NBREN AT AR B RS
3%mmm Mm% & 10 B8 A i /9 hn g 39
NAREEBEO219 N - —F+—
A=+—H RE-_ZTFEREFERL
T AFERETIEREENRITELZ
FEARREFT S AR (D BB 7 71 48,584,00010 (=
T — T4 1 8,984,00017) K18,000,00017 (=
TTFE) HERRALE M EHRE
TEBHARRBEEITRAZ10% (ZE=
TE 11%) M21% (B T4 : ) o
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted share option schemes on 4 October 2006
(the “2006 Share Option Scheme”) and 20 May 2016 (the 2016
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to the Directors, eligible employees, suppliers, customers, any
shareholder of each member of the Group or associated company
or any of their respective associates, and advisers or consultants of
the Group who contribute to the success of the Group. The 2006
Share Option Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 4 October 2006 and up to 40,000,000 options
entitling the holders thereof to subscribe for up to 40,000,000
shares may be granted under the 2006 Share Option Scheme, which
was terminated on 20 May 2016. The granted outstanding options
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms
of the 2006 Share Option Scheme. The 2016 Share Option Scheme
has become effective for the periods of 10 years commencing on
20 May 2016 and up to 84,687,800 options entitling the holders
thereof to subscribe for up to 84,687,800 shares may be granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme since then. On 30 August
2021, share option of 18,000,000 is granted under the 2016 Share
Option Scheme (2020: Nil). The estimated fair value of the share
options granted on that date was HK$3,941,000 and the weighted
average fair value of each option granted was HK$0.219. As at 31
December 2021, number of shares in respect of which options had
been granted and remained outstanding under the 2006 Share
Option Scheme and the 2016 Share Option Scheme were 8,584,000
(2020: 8,984,000) and 18,000,000 (2020: Nil), representing 1.0%
(2020: 1.1%) and 2.1% (2020: Nil) of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of share options granted during the year under 2016 Share
Option Scheme:

The Group has used binomial option-pricing model to determine
the fair value of the share option as of the grant date with the
assistance of Roma Appraisals Limited, independent firm of chartered
surveyors. Option valuation model requires the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the option’s expected life and the
price volatility of the underlying shares, and changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate of
share options.

Significant unobservable inputs

HK$0.890 per share
HK$0.908 per share

Share price at grant date
Exercise price

Weighted average contractual life 7 years
Expected volatility 48.08%
Expected dividend yield 4.29%
Risk-free rate 0.893%

Annual Report 2021 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited 121



B RS AR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-_ZT-—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

30. L;LBEE@SEHZ%&(IE (%) 30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
R-B_—FR_F_FFt+_H=+—8" Details of the specific categories of options outstanding as at 31
%Eiﬁﬁ”Zr‘?*Tﬂiﬁ%ﬁx%ﬁ\ ;AT December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

) ) MR EBRERE
ERAEH R A FEAH figid L e Number of outstanding
Category of grantee Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price share options
ZE--F  CZECEf
2021 2020
2755 & (k) —Z--F\R=1A —Z--F\A=1H :T::¢ \A=+AZ  #%0908T 2,500,000 -
Mr. Liu Yang (Note (i) 30 August 2021 30 August 2022 ZZNENAZTAR  HKS0.908
30A August 2022 to
29 August 2028
2 —§)\A=t1H “ZCZENAZHR ZEZCZHN\AZTBRE O AK098T 2,500,000 -
30 August 2021 30 August 2023 ZECNENAZTABE HK$0.908
30 August 2023 to
29 August 2028
FRe ot A (BYEG) “2-n%+A+A N 2 \¥tATRZE 181457 160,000 160,000
Mr. Chen Xiaohua (Note (i) 10 July 2015 10 July 2016 :2: E+ANA HK$1.45
0 July 2016 to 9 July 2023
“Z-n%¥+A+A e “E¥LATAE 711457 300,000 300,000
0 July 2015 10 July 2017 “2-ZFtANA HK$1.45

10 July 2017 to 9 July 2023
“E--®#\f=1H “E--E\A=+R —E-—ENA=+HE  BH0908T 2,000,000 =

30 August 2021 30 August 2022 “E-NENAZTABE  HK$0.908
30 August 2022 to
29 August 2028
—T-§)\A=1H ZE-=FN\A=+A  ZE-=FN\A=tAE  AK0908T 2,000,000 -
30 August 2021 30 August 2023 ZEZNENAZTRE  HK$0.908
30 August 2023 to
29 August 2028
i 2L (i ek i) “Z-REtATH “T—+Et+ATH T t5¥+ATEE 711457 - 140,000
Ms. Shi Huifang (Note i)) 10 July 2015 10 July 2017 “E_=F+ANA HK$1.45
10 July 2017 to 9 July 2023
BT “T-R%tA+H —E-RELATH T RELATRE 1457 3,088,000 3,148,000
Employees 10 July 2015 10 July 2016 “2-=%tAnA HK$1.45
0 July 2016 to 9 July 2023
ZE-RFEtLATH ZZ—tF+ATH ZE—tf+ATHE 7B 51 45T 5,036,000 5,236,000
10 July 2015 10 July 2017 :2: E+ANA HK$1.45

0 July 2017 to 9 July 2023
“Z--FN\A=tH “E--E\A=1H :T::¢ \A=+HZ  ##09087T 4,500,000 =

30 August 2021 30 August 2022 ZZNENAZTAR  HKS0.908
30A August 2022 to
29 August 2028
2 —§)\A=tH “TZE\ASTH ZB-=F)\A=tHE BHK0908T 4,500,000 -
30 August 2021 30 August 2023 ZECNENAZTABE HK$0.908
30 August 2023 to
29 August 2028
26,584,000 8,984,000
Bk Notes:
(i) BIBEERREELETIRITES - (i) Mr. Liu Yang and Mr. Chen Xiaohua are the executive Director.
iy MERSLTDHESTIEAEZERE: (i)~ Ms. Shi Huifang is the spouse of Mr. Wang Zijiang who is a Director
WREFITREZBEA - and therefore an associate of Mr. Wang Zijiang.
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30. URGBXMAZRE(E) 30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
TREHIA R T ARRE R S B A I T 1T Movements of and weighted average exercise prices of the
B8 : Company’s share options are as follows:
g Nt
TEE TEE
Weighted [BREZE Weighted BB EZIH
average Number of average Number of
exercise price share option  exercise price  share option
B ZE--% ZTTF ZZT=TF
2021 2021 2020 2020
RER M ARITE Outstanding at beginning 7B #E1.455T 71 457T
of the years HK$1.45 8,984,000 HK$1.45 9,864,000
FREH Granted during the year ##0.9087T
HK$0.908 18,000,000 = =
FREIK Forfeited during the years B #1.457T 1 457
HK$1.45 (400,000) HK$1.45 (880,000)
RERMARITHE Outstanding at the end 7 #1.0837T 71 457T
of the years HK$1.083 26,584,000 HK$1.45 8,984,000
ZEERFERETE R T RN E R The exercise price share options outstanding under 2006 Share
SFEIR R ARITEBERERERZITEED 5 Option Scheme and 2016 Share Option Scheme at the end of the
BBE1AST (ZE_ZF - B 14570) & year was HK$1.45 (2020: HK$1.45) and HK$0.908 (2020: Nil)
BH0008TT (ZE_TF : /) - MeMH respectively and the weighted average remaining contractual life was
MEFHE G RBASNF (ZT_TF : 5.1 years (2020: 2.5 years).
2.56) o
TEFR M ARITEREIRIELEF - 58,584,000 Out of the total number of options outstanding at the end of the
DIERAE (ZZ ZZF : 8,984,00017 & i 1&) year, 8,584,000 share options (2020: 8,984,000 shares options) had
E 5B R A T been vested and were exercisable.
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31 ERARRZ-ZE=—F+=

=+ — BB &R

A 31.

HOLDING COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

—EB=-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
M ARET ARETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EEHERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
L/ E RN e Property, plant and equipment - =
RHB AR 2 & Investment in subsidiaries 78,217 78,217
78,217 78,217
RBEE Current assets
N ENETE Q] Amounts due from subsidiaries 419,065 234,058
T8 - 3R I8 K E Ath FE UK IR Prepayments and other receivables 188 188
R1T R IR & 8k Bank and cash balances 4,934 271
424,187 234,517
REEE Current liabilities
FER RISERFR R E MBI 5KIE  Accruals and other payables 801 2,456
S ST NI B Advances from ultimate holding
company - 12,548
JEST B B A A ZR I8 Amounts due to a subsidiary - 2,246
801 17,250
REBEERE Net current assets 423,386 217,267
BEERARBERS Total assets less current liabilities 501,603 295,484
EEFE Net assets 501,603 295,484
= EQUITY
fi% A Share capital 28 7,831 7,831
& Reserves 29 493,772 287,653
B Total equity 501,603 295,484

BR-ZE-—F=-HA-tHRBAEESESHE

WIREHETT  WHATRREE

2%
LIU YANG
EF

Director

March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
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WANG ZUJIANG
EF

Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 25
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32. AMBARZELS 32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
R_F_—FR-F_FF+-_A=+—AH"
AATIMB AR HEEWT

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

HMRL/ KIR BRITEE/
EEBE BAERmREZER keER/RER/
Place of Nominal value of EERRED
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of ownership
1 establishment paid-up registered interests/voting rights/ TREH
Name and operations share capital profit share Principal activities
E& 3
Direct Indirect
BRERARAT A BET 100% - RERR
Great Growth Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
BRERARAT A BET 100% - REBR
Great Spirit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
BEARARAF A BET 100% - REBR
Great Promise Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
AEBRERARAH i 110,000 70% - REBK
Tiande Medical Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
MEARAH &R 110,000 - 100% HERALIER
Tech Chem Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Sales of fine chemical products
BEERARAA ERGEBRES 26857 - 100%  REHR
Smartcham Holdings Limited The BVI US$268 Investment holding
BRLXARAA ERGEBRES 1251% 7 - 100%  REHR
Smartpoint Enterprises Limited The BVI US$1,251 Investment holding
BRERARAA ERGEBRES YYES - 100%  REHR
Techsmart Holdings Limited The BVI Us$477 Investment holding
RUREIBERAA TEEEALE 600,000 T - 100% HERIHERACIER
Weifang Common Chem Co., Ltd. (IEEELE]) US$600,000 Selling and distribution of
The PRC, Wholly fine chemical products
foreign-owned
enterprise
(“WFOE")
LEEMEIARAR (T LERIL) HE IEEELE AR 15,000,0007C - 100% HERIHERACIER
Shanghai Dehong Chemical Company ~ The PRC, WFOE RMB5,000,000 Selling and distribution of
Limited (“Shanghai Dehong”) fine chemical products
BOBUERRAR PEEEALE 35,200,000 - 100% HERIHRACIER
Weifang Parasia Chem Co., Ltd The PRC, WFOE US$35,200,000 Selling and distribution of
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32. RMMB AR 2R (&)

33.

32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

MR/ B LR BRAEE/
EENE BAEMEAZEE BERE/ RER/
Place of Nominal value of s E oL
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of ownership
2R establishment paid-up registered interests/voting rights/ TEXK
Name and operations share capital profit share Principal activities
E# Gk
Direct Indirect
ASERRRLIERAR HE AAEERE 51,000,000 T - 100%  HE REREERAIER
Weifang Binhai Petro-Chem Co., Ltd ~ The PRC, WFOE US$51,000,000 Research and development,
manufacture and sales of fine
chemical products
EERRSNERAR hE - SEBERE ARE17,675,8807C - 100% % HEREEBESHER
Deling Medical Instruments The PRC, WFOE RMB$17,675,880 Research and development,
Co., Limited manufacture and sale of
medical instrument products
AR IERAR hE AEH61,408,163TC - 51%  E HEREEIED
Weifang Zhongying Chemical The PRC RMBS$61,408,163 Research and development,
Co., Ltd. manufacture and sale of
chemical products
ERREARERAR] BB 52007 100% - REBR
Dekel Investment Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong HK$200 Investment holding
B ERIMHARAR hE - SEBERE 14,051,190% T - 100% HERHEBHEER

Weifang Dekel Innovative Materials
Co., Ltd

The PRC, WFOE

RER - BEEMMBARETERES (=

ST ) o

US$14,051,190

Manufacture and sales of adhesive
products

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year (2020: Nil).

R 33. COMMITMENTS
RREBH  AEBZAENT : The Group’s commitments at the reporting date are as follows:
—E-—-F —E-EFF
2021 2020
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRAWEYZ Commitments for acquisition of property,
M= K2 =R Y plant and equipment 86,289 120,501
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34. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Long-term leases (in the capacity as lessee)

Referring to note 3(l), the Group has certain leases of lands in the
jurisdictions from which it has operations. Rental contracts are
typically with lease terms maximum to 50 years, with no renewal,
extension and termination options for the lessee. The periodic rent
from the leases is fixed over the lease terms. Leases of lands in the
PRC are recognised as right-of-use assets which their lease payments
have been prepaid and no lease liabilities arising from those leases.

Right-of-use assets
Movement of right-of-use assets which recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

—EB=-—F —E-THF

2021 2020

ARET T ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

n—HA—H At 1 January 64,219 75,427

0 Addition - 1,113

B 84 Amortisation (1,837) (2,142)

e (MYsE) Land Resumption (note) - (10,179)

R+—_A=+—H At 31 December 62,382 64,219

IETR B EB D Non-current portion 62,382 64.219
I 5E Note:

BABT EE6GAT AL - R ETTRZ UL « MRS BRI
SFEARE10,179,000EABREEE RN -F
“EFRIER -

RZEZ—F+=ZRA=+—H ' EEFEAE
AR #61,748,000c (ZE T F : AR
29,850,0007T) MW FEE EC SR 1TE R
A R #40,000,000c (ZE =T F : AR
20,000,0007T) (F17E25) YEH# A o

BHAE (EREEA)

AEBETFBEMBEONR A ZRMEE R
RRHHEE - HRBRINHEESRNAS
ERBBER2EANGRETEEBERE
B AEBERTRACHREEENEESR
& meEfEtEHEAENESENTIZE
HIABE AR RBEEPORRX -

As detailed in note 6(ii), as a result of the Land Resumption, right-of-use
assets of Weifang Parasia with the net carrying amount of RMB10,179,000
were derecognised in 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, right-of-use assets with the net carrying
amount of RMB61,748,000 (2020: RMB29,850,000) was pledged for
bank borrowings of R\MB40,000,000 (2020: RMB20,000,000) (note
25).

Short-term leases (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group has lease of office premises located in the PRC and Hong
Kong which are recognised as short-term leases. Since the lease
contracts entered with lease terms ends within 12 months from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option, the
Group has elected not to recognise the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities but recognises the lease payments associated with these
leases as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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34. HEREREEE (&)
EHIEE (EREBEAN) (B)

A E R MARMB AR ZFBEWT

34. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Short-term leases (in the capacity as lessee)
(Continued)

Details of the short-term lease expenses and undiscounted
commitments are as follows:

=F=- I
2021 2020
AR®T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEERZ (BE8E Short-term leases expenses (included in

TR AL ERY) administrative and other operating expenses) 3,904 4,136

A RGIR AT BRI E AR AR RE Aggregate undiscounted commitments for
short-term leases 743 788

HEHR SR AR
RenBRMEENRESENT

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the
following:

—E-—F —EEF

2021 2020

AR®T AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EEEERLERGRE Within operating cash flows 3,904 4,136

ERHBEA

NEERNREMEATRNIERE T ZUE
F-RZZBE-_—F+-_A=+—80"'RET
ATHEGERE  AEBZ AAREASER

As lessor

The Group's investment properties are leased to a number of tenants
for varying terms. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating

RABFELAT leases as follows:
—F-—F b b
2021 2020
ARBT T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—F R Within one year 731 531
BN —FETNERRE Later than one year and not later than two years 348 495
ERMEETNRR=F Later than two years and not later than three years 44 247
1,123 1,273

REASENEEHERH HELABER
FHR—E=F(CTZTF: —E=F)T
% - MEFRR—KREREPXNRER

128 XELIZERERAT —T-—FFRH

Under operating lease arrangements of the Group, the leases are
negotiated for an average terms of one to three years (2020: one to
three years). The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits.
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BEL RS 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
NEEEBEB AN FERNT NS0T ¢ During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions

with related parties:

—E-—F —E-THF
2021 2020
AR T AR®ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
F—FB(ZF_FF : —%) Short-term lease expenses to a related
WTESHEEalEn company in which one (2020: one) of the
WA I THEERTE N executive Director have beneficial interests
AR M EEEERY and can exercise significant influence 514 514
(MSBRIEB R TIER) (Repayment to)/Advances from ultimate
B EIERR A B EAFR 0 SR EE holding company, net (10,680) 41,664
FEBEEAB 2SR MIFE10 - The remuneration of key management personnel are set out in note
10.
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36.

RMETHEENEEZHER 36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TRAMAEEREMETHNEELE) The table below shows detailed changes in the Group’s liabilities
PRECkIFRC B METHELEN from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
BEARERENIRKBEREENIHR Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash
REBGERESRERTHEAREETHIN flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
ERmENEE- consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
FERBRR BEERAR
B3 B3
Advances Advances
#1785  fromanon- from ultimate
Bank controlling holding k)
borrowings shareholder company Total
AR%T T AR%T T ARET R ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
(HH&E2s5) (H&x26) (KrzE27)
(note 25) (note 26) (note 27)
R-ZE--%-A—H At 1 January 2021 110,000 5,334 105,507 220,841
BRERSHAN/ (Fd) : Financing cash inflows/(outflows):
HMIBIRITIETR New bank borrowing raised 60,000 - - 60,000
BERTER Repayment of bank borrowings (110,000) - - (110,000)
EAFE Interest paid (4,726) - (634) (5,360)
MERRER D FIER Repayment to ultimate holding company
o ) — principal amount portion - - (13,662) (13,662)
BRIRERRF B Advance from ultimate holding company
o ) — principal amount portion - - 1,676 1,676
Hitt2g) Other changes:
BERNIRTERR Repayment of accrued interest under accruals
L fth e A SRIA RO FE AT I S and other payable 216 - - 216
FlEFX Interest expenses 4,510 - 1,940 6,450
[ &R Exchange adjustments - (159) (67) (226)
RZZBZ-$+=ZA=+—H At31December 2021 60,000 5,175 94,760 159,935
130 XRECIZBRERAT —B=—FFH
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36. MMEEZEEEXENEE2YHER(E) 36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

FEEBRR  RERERAR

37.

B B3R
Advances Advances
HRITIER fromanon-  from ultimate
Bank controlling holding k)
borrowings shareholder company Total
AREFTT ARETT AR®EFTT AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(PiF5¥25) (Pit5¥26) iE7))
(note 25) (note 26) (note 27)
R-ZE-Z2F—H—H At 1 January 2020 170,000 5,682 64,659 240,341
AMERETEA/ (GRE) Financing cash inflows/(outflows):
HMIBIRITIETR New bank borrowing raised 110,000 - - 110,000
BERTER Repayment of bank borrowings (170,000) - - (170,000)
BAF 8 Interest paid (9,425) - (14) (9,439)
BRIRPERR A Advances from ultimate holding company
-AgHn — principal amount portion - = 40,000 40,000
H & Other changes:
MEFRX Interest expenses 9,729 = 1,678 11,407
FERT AR BRI R E A Accrued interest under accruals and
JE RIS BT ALS other payables (304) = = (304)
PE R g% Exchange adjustments - (348) (816) (1,164)
NZE-FTE+-"F=+—H At 31 December 2020 110,000 5,334 105,507 220,841

TR ERERE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEEEE 2 eBARE - mHER (8
EERRREMNERR)  EFERR MRS
R AREcEERREESESHT
SR TR 2 R - BERBERE A BRI A
SEMBRATRIABRE BEFTHHE
TEREEECRMEATEERERNAE

A A Ko bl 7 ' 38 B ER R 2 B AL R ) SR

The Group is exposed to financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Directors meet periodically
and co-operate closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks.

AEBETRRREBENMEESREE @ IF
REHEDE - AEEAXREANE R
R T X & - o - I EE37(VE B IR
AETHEREERBEHRE -

The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes nor does it write options. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed are described below.
See also note 37(v) for a summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category.
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37. TRERER(E)
(i) IMERER

RRAKEETEHERS BEERA
BIAE® - T RBITAHE - MUK
£ T SO E R e o AN SR B3R B O 4R
SEMINER Z - BE M A EHIESH
PE SR - AR E A E ) B RINE
R TeERNERTEZHLEITEKX
SINEEE PRt

RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—8 WA
REREE ELRKBRITHEET
B&/ EFS%IMFT A H A o] & H = M
& A AREBF R RRE 5
Fe 80, 4 A R #7,079,00070
(ZE=Z=F : AR%2,840,0007T)
FERERUETFENE SRR
KRR TR A 0B H Uz B 18 o

7S BB Y — BB E B
LR 01515 - AR AIERIE I 2 -

= AR

AEEEE 2 MEEZHREB TR R
AE2FEBERRBITHER - AEE
WARERBEAITES RERF R -
A EEESEENERAR L&
ZRNAFEZREMEAN AR -

(ii)

BRED

T AR BB % F 1 7] g HER MO A R & 8h
TiZ05% (ZZE-ZTF : FTF0.5%)
MBS - 5T E R TIARNEBRRE
BHEFNZEESRIEERBEAE
A METEE M A EEEESTE -

(i)

(ii)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has exposure to foreign currency risk as certain of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated
in HK$, US$ and EUR. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

As at 31 December 2021, if the RMB had weakened/
strengthened 5% against HK$, US$ and EUR with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits would have been approximately RMB7,079,000
(2020: RMB2,840,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain/loss on trade and bills receivable
denominated in US$.

The measures to manage foreign currency risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are considered to
be effective.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s floating interest
rate borrowings and bank deposits. The Group has not used
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
profit for the year and retained profits to a possible change in
interest rates of +/- 0.5% (2020: +/- 0.5%), with effect from
the beginning of the years. The calculations are based on the
Group'’s financial assets and liabilities with floating interest
rates held at the reporting dates. All other variables are held
constant.

REEBRRREEF
Profit for the year and
retained profits

AR®T

RMB'000
+0.5% -0.5%
—E-—H+-_FA=+—H 31 December 2021 341 (341)
—E-FTFA+—F=+—H 31 December 2020 31 (31)

132 XELAIZERERIT —B-—FFRK
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37. TRERERE(E)

(ii)

(iii)

FEmEbE(E)

BUSLEE 5 47 (4)

IRIE A AT TREOBRAE - B
FESBTREEARA LT
A EAERE YRR AR+~ (A
BRI & 2 AT B R BT (RO

AEEEREFEE—HEREERN
KRS - WRBEMEEEN

EERR

EERBRKEREHKAAENES
FEURR ~ AT & ~ Eo Al YRR ~ SR1T
EReHEHIRDERBTER EQ
REFAEMEZEKENEREE

UEBRFNEERR BEAEER
W R IE o
(@) BERERE

AEBEEFIERK - UHERAS
HEEEREZEPHESR

AEBEVYESEANEESTR
% BERROBMELZERE R
HFEH AT BEMAEME
BARE AR —F+—
A=+—H®E FEKIEN49%

(ZE2-FF 69%) - ARER
HEERK  BEEBBRNET
BN ERNEZEFBELG 1t
REREAMBMESKNEE
B o

(b) RE

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—8"
A A R#9,973,000T (ZZE =
T4 . A R #90973,0007T) K EH
th B UK R IB DAE 7S A B S ) — 1
T (ZZE=FF : —tgti) (I
FE190)) 1EIR7E » W F HER K
FRA&SR - BIRTHESTIRAT ©

Br EXCATALE SN - AR BN A
BHMEBRIERRE

PR ERRBTEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2T —F+— A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market
conditions and represents the management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the next twelve
months period.

The measures to manage interest rate risk have been followed
by the Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade receivables, deposits, other
receivables, bank and cash balances and pledged bank
deposits, at amortised cost and bills receivable at FVOCI, as
well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables.

(a) Risk management
The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are

made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk with exposure spread over a number of customers
and counterparties. However, the geographical location
of customers is mainly on the PRC which accounted
for 49% (2020: 69%) of the trade receivables as at
31 December 2021. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management will endeavor to build an extensive
customer base that spread over the world, which can
minimise the credit risk by geographical location.

Securities

As at 31 December 2021, other receivables amounting
to RMB9,973,000 (2020: RMB9,973,000) was secured by
a piece of land (2020: a piece of land) (note 19(i)) owned
by a debtor which can be called if the counterparty is in
default under the terms of the agreement.

(b)

Other than stated as above, the Group does not hold
collateral as security.
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37. SRAAKRER (&)
(i) EERK(Z)

()
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

g 5 EWERBEF () Impairment assessment on trade receivables
HE_ZT - FR=-ZZT-_TF For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
+ZA=+T—HLEE TE= impairment loss is recognised for trade receivables not
EEREBEBRBARERBED only when there was objective evidence of impairment,
5 TN ERE 5 KRR R E & but also at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
B N eRERABEEETED is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's
FRATEREERIESBETRE historical credit loss experience does not indicate
R ARAEENBEEEEE significantly different loss patterns for different customer
KERIWARBRTRERFERERE segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
BEAGTERZEEZE  ERNBER not further distinguished between the Group's different
MIEL R E BB REREE customer bases. Expected loss rates are based on actual
TRARFRzHE—FED - & loss experience over the past 5 years and forward
HA 518 wﬂ%?iﬂ?&ﬁiﬁ’]il‘% looking information. These rates are adjusted to reflect
BRERTE - AALXE(EH differences between economic conditions during the
= Lx}iﬁg%uﬁlﬁﬂﬁ%(ﬁ%ﬁﬁ Elp] periods over which the historic data has been collected,
KB EZR - BRI AR current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
& B 3 e W sk I TR HR S PR MY 48O conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
RS HY R 2 o
TRIIIAEBRRE BHANGE The following table provides information about the
ERk & E SR EREERED Group's exposure to credit risk and loss allowance of
BH} trade receivables as at reporting dates:
R=B=—Ft+=HA=+—H As at 31 December 2021
BEEH REFHE
RHERER Gross BERE EERE Net
Expected carrying Loss Specific carrying
loss rate amount allowance allowance amount
% ARETT ARETRT AR¥TRT AR%ET:R
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2R (REH) Current (not past due) 0.004% 308,621 (13) - 308,608
EiBH1-90H 1-90 days past due 0.02% 24,356 (4) - 24,352
2 #85191-180H 91-180 days past due 0.30% 3,308 (10) - 3,298
B 1BH1181-365H 81-365 days past due 3.71% 674 (25) - 649
BB E365H Over 365 days past due 13.17% 1,659 (32) (1,416) 211
338,618 (84) (1,416) 337,118
—g-—55R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

g S EWRBEFTM (Z) () Impairment assessment on trade receivables
(Continued)
R-BE-ZEF+-HA=+-—H As at 31 December 2020
REES REFE
EHEEX Gross BERE SREE Net
Expected carrying Loss Specific carrying
loss rate amount allowance allowance amount
% ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2 (CRi@H) Current (not past due) 0.004% 152,885 (6) = 152,879
EiBH1-90H 1-90 days past due 0.01% 6,273 ) = 6,272
2 i8H91-180H 91-180 days past due 0.31% 1,029 3) - 1,026
2 i8H181-365H 181-365 days past due 3.61% 1,067 (39) - 1,028
BB HiEiE365H Qver 365 days past due 10.96% 2,019 (169) (760) 1,090
163,273 (218) (760) 162,295

B W 5 10 R O B

Movement in the allowance account in respect of trade

W receivables is as follows:
—E-—F —ETTF
2021 2020
AR¥T ARETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—H—B&&# Balance at 1 January 978 4068
B R0R (B B 18 2 4% Reversal of impairment loss
recognised (134) (545)
EEREIERERE Provision for/(Reversal of) specific
B (B#) impairment loss recognised 656 (1,426)
1,500 2,097
F A8 Write off during the year - (1,119)
R+ A=+—B#&&% Balance at 31 December 1,500 978

REBEE—_ZE_FTF+_A=+—
BIEFE - #isE A R%1,119,000

I °

An amount of RMB1,119,000 was written off for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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37. SRAAKRER (&)
(i) EERK(Z)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

136 XREELIZERERAT

(d) HERAALEBEFTAHMEZEKER (d) Impairment assessment on debt instruments at
BT AETRENMG FVOCI
RZE-—EFER T -FF+— As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, bills receivable is
A=+—H EBREEESEA classified as debt instruments at FVOCI, which are matured
BEAREFAEMEZEKZER within 12-months. The measurement of loss allowance
1MEARNBHEETH - BER was based on 12 months ECLs. No impairment loss is
HER12E A B EE R8T recognised during the year (2020: Nil).
£ > FR W EBREMREEE
—EFFE) o

(e) HREBERAFTENHMSEE (e) Impairment assessment on other financial assets

EETRET G
IRTTRIA S E R EEIRRITE
RINBB ST BB HREYERE
ORI B E - BRI EFIE
HEREBRIFEEFTRNESE
WA B BRI REEEIL T
BER o Rl & RHEAMEWFIBHER
BEERRBRRIE  MEEEEE
L2 ANBHEEEET= -
H i fE U FRIR A K #51,980,0007T
(ZEZ2F B BEAEHE
EERE  WAEIRREREE
B (M sE19GH) ° 2t ATER K
T N B A i U R IE A FE UK AT BT B
N A FIE L) A R #24,720,0007T
(ZZ=_ZF : AR ¥24,720,000
) EEAELBEERE I E
BT IR R (B B 1B B (Ff 5E
190) HBHE—_ZTE=-—F+=-A4
=+ BHW R RBRESBEEEN
FERERNFAEERKRIEINE
B FRATBEHREEREETT -
BRIt 2 S - & 38 [ 3R A L JiE UK
HEHENEERRRE  BA
EEELNERERE o

(iv) TEE =R B

EEERBUERRE NEBEER
MEREEBRRRAMNRE LIRS
HEEBRE FRAKEZEMENE
ERTFEASRENINTE T
ETHERRANBERENRSRER
FRHNEREEREIBNERAE
RS °

HRAEEOEHRRITERTHARE
BERTHENRBEARBRERF
B EERA SEAKEB A
AR ERE A KERR A
SEBEERMNEEED  BRARN
BRIFAS - AEBECDHRESE TRTE
B — BB R A B R R R
BERAZERARNBT  ERERD
TR R

—E-—F5H

at amortised cost

Bank and cash balances and pledged bank deposits
are also subjected to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial
since they are placed at financial institutions with
good credit rating. For deposits and other receivables,
which are considered to have low credit risk, and the
measurement of loss allowance was therefore based on
12-months ECLs. Other receivables of RMB1,980,000
(2020: Nil) is considered as credit-impaired and provision
for impairment loss is made accordingly (note 19(iii)).
Amounts due from a former subsidiary which is included
in prepayments and other receivable approximately of
RMB24,720,000 (2020: RMB24,720,000) is considered
as credit-impaired and provision for impairment loss is
made accordingly (note 19(i)), the measurement of loss
allowance of the outstanding balance as at 31 December
2021 is based on lifetime ECLs due to the increase in
credit risk during the year. Other than that, management
considered the remaining balance of other receivables as
low credit risk since they have a low risk of default.

(iv) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As the Group has short-term bank borrowings which could
be renewed on an annual basis at the discretion of the Group
within limit approved by banks, the Directors are of the opinion
that, taking into account the presently available facilities
and internal financial resources of the Group, the Group has
sufficient working capital for its present requirements. The
Group obtained certain bank borrowings, advances from
a non-controlling shareholder and advances from ultimate
holding company as source of liquidity.
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37. TRERERE(E) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(iv) REERERSR (22) (iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRBIZE RARBNRD TR S The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial
B ERHER liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
=EAm ZfEAE
FREX —£R RERAE RAEE
Within Between Total
3 months or 3months  undiscounted Carrying
on demand to 1 year amount amount
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—E--& 2021
ZHEMNE EWEMNZIE  Trade, other payables and
RERANER accruals 154,240 114,745 268,985 268,985
RITHET* Bank borrowings * - 60,000 60,000 60,000
FERBRRBHR Advances from a non-controling
shareholder - 5175 5,175 5175
RAERA R BT Advances from ultimate holding company - 94,760 94,760 94,760
At Total 154,240 274,680 428,920 428,920
mt St 2.3 2020
ZHRNE  EEMTE  Trade, other payables and
REERA R ERSL accruals 153,647 116,816 270,463 270,463
RITE Bank borrowings * = 110,000 110,000 110,000
IR AR R BTN Advances from a non-controlling
shareholder - 5,334 5334 5334
FRERDAZR Advances from ultimate holding company - 105,507 105,507 105,507
&t Total 153,647 337,657 491,304 491,304
* EREE B IS M R B SR E R AR @ Balances include bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
TfER clause.
SR B R B R R P B R E R X The table below summarises the maturity analysis of bank
B ] 2% BE BT 75 4 SR B B IR SRRV ER AT borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on
EXFTEMEIBR ST - SEEIEMN agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements.
SRMEAENFEN K At - % The amounts include interest payments computed using
LR ERMEMBBARSTF 1R contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater
EXRFERARENSE R - B R than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band
AEBRBS BN  EFRBRITD in the maturity analysis contained in the above table. Taking
AABEEMBEERIANER - EFE4M8 into account the Group's financial position, the Directors do
5 ZERTERBREERBHEM not consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise its
HATEEENBHEE - discretion to demand immediate repayment. The Directors

believe that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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37. eREAKRER (&) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(iv) REVEREBS (2) (iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
BRREE
BEREAT —ERAFREX
BREE Total contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-—-%#+-f=1+—H 31 December 2021 60,000 61,758 61,758
—2-_TF+-_A=+—H 31 December 2020 110,000 113,156 113,156

(v)

AEBEBREFEE—BEBREEER
%ﬁ’liﬁt R YR REBEES
2 o

BERNETHNERMEERARE
M=

i R-B-_—FR_FB_ZTF
TZA=+—HNEHRSBMEER
BEMNKREEANEATIR - ERXNE
BT ANERN AR E LRI

\

N

The measures to manage liquidity risk have been followed by
the Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.

(v) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities
recognised as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 may also
be categorised as follows. See note 3(h) for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments affects their

= ' B2 HEMIFEN)RELRA © subsequent measurement.
—E-—fF —E_TF
2021 2020
ARET T ARKET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
SEEE Financial assets
IR AT ERN S B EE © Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
—&E S EWER — Trade receivables 337,118 162,295
—&1 % M EH fib fE Y F B — Deposits and other receivables 68,495 200,039
— B IRRITIER — Pledged bank deposits 3 7
—SRT RIS &S — Bank and cash balances 226,349 125,314
AR EFFAHMETEUZRH  Financial asset measured at
DREE : FVOCl:
— RN EE — Bills receivable 175,572 88,938
807,537 576,593
ERas Financial liabilities
Tﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ'%ﬁ’\]%%ﬂﬁ{% :  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Z 5 AR — Trade payables 47,378 39,036
—Jﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ% XN E b A FIE — Accruals and other payables 221,607 231,427
—R1TER — Bank borrowings 60,000 110,000
— AR AR R B K — Advances from a non-controlling shareholder 5,175 5,334
— BRI N AR — Advances from ultimate holding company 94,760 105,507

428,920 491,304
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EXEHE
AEENEAEEBRENERASEBRE
NFBEE - ARATEERBRKFE 3 E miE
MHEEE - M ABRRERTHNER -

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods commensurately
with the level of risk.

AEESERNEERRNES MAABEEN
R EERARBELGE - BERX
ABERGERE  NEERERRBRIKEH
REE - BITHA . MBCREREE R - (EEG
BEBRENLEEERE

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristic of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts.

REBEDRBEBHERL RERKE 2 & The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt-to-equity

Ao RN ETAFENTE -

RS A ER S =T

ratio. This ratio is calculated as set out in the table below.

The debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:

—E-—fF —E_TF

2021 2020

AR®T R AR®ETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RITRER Bank borrowings 60,000 110,000
FEIEARAR R EA K Advances from a non-controlling shareholder

-EKEE D — principal amount portion 5,177 5,182

153 S N Advances from ultimate holding company

- K E D — principal amount portion 90,000 102,048

BIETS Total debts 155,177 217,230

o IRTT R AR Less: Bank and cash balances (226,349) (125,314)

2 HEARITER Pledged bank deposits (3) (7)

(BESFE) ABFHE Net (assets)/liabilities (71,175) 91,909

e Total equity 1,754,810 1,382,892

B LR Debt-to-equity ratio TEA N/A 7%

Annual Report 2021

Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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RZZ—NF  NAFRIRINB R R LE#RERE
B2t TABR AR (DIEERE]) AR
EA(REEFEADELDEHERAEAR
EBE (DREERT ) IRHEVAERRE - ZxkEf
B oA T Bk A A5 (E A R % 15,000,0007T (3
AE=ZZ—NAF+—A—BRBiHNEF
B) #HRHBAE-_T—+F+A-1THH
7 Bk P IR F 253 ;ZIRFKET L
BREERSHEBARIIEREE AN
EiES (M BBl IMEEARAERT
RREZZFBIEF) °

ZATRERFEREIRAER  WEZEREH
BHRER(CFE_TF 8E) - HUFB F9
AMBHARE =

E_EEFEREN_F

— — R R E W A A EE21 o

REHBRNSEH
BREBEEBERARRBATEEN T
——FZATRETBAERRERN  KE
BN —E——F+_A=+—BHEZEARFER
HEAWEB LS KEN - BAFBEH2HA
ANEIR-ZE-_—F-_A+HBMHNAE -

—E-—F5H

39.

40.

LITIGATION

In 2019, the ex-equity holder of Jiangsu Chunxiao Pharmaceutical
& Chemical Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Chunxiao”), the former subsidiary of
the Company (the “Ex-Equity Holder”) filed a legal claim to Pudong
New District People’s Court (the “Pudong Court”) against Shanghai
Dehong and Jiangsu Chunxiao for a fee of RMB15,000,000, (together
with accrued interest from 1 November 2019) in relation to the
performance bonus payable to the Ex-Equity Holder on profit
achievement of Jiangsu Chunxiao under a handwritten clause,
without countersigned by either Shanghai Dehong or Jiangsu
Chunxiao to signify acceptance, inserted in a supplementary
agreement dated 20 October 2017.

This lawsuit was fully resolved during the year and there is no impact
to these consolidated financial statements (2020: Nil). For further
details of the litigation, please refer to note 41 and note 21 of the
Company’s annual report 2020 and interim report 2021 respectively.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event of the Group after 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this annual report, except that Cheerhill
Group Limited and Mr. Liu Hongliang ceased to be the controlling
Shareholder on 15 February 2022. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 15 February 2022.
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